
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
AGENDA 

 JULY 7, 2014 



Table of Contents

Agenda 3
Consideration and Action:

Cover Sheet 5
Case Analysis 6
Concept Plan 14
Application 16
Community Meeting Summary 18
Stormwater Narrative 19
Stormwater Plan 22
Proposed Elevations 24

Memorandum and Agreement to Partner with Wildlife
Resources Commission for Waterlily Boating Access Area.

Memorandum of Agreement-NC Wildlife for Coinjock
Boating 30

Appointments to Whalehead Preservation Trust
Whalehead Trust Appointment Form 34

Approval of June 16, 2014 Minutes
Minutes June 16, 2014 35

CDBG Monthly Status Report
Cover Sheet 89
Report 90

Centennial Proclamation for NC Cooperative Extension
Proclamation NC Coop Ext 92

Consideration and Action:  Crawford Township Volunteer Fire
Department Request to Replace Failed Ladder Truck

Fire Pump Test 94
Ladder Test 96
Crawford VFD Request 102

Petition to NCDOT for State Maintenance of Arabian Lane.
Arabian Lane 103

Report of Insolvents and Resolution Approving the Settlement
with the Tax Collector

Insolvents 110
Insolvents List 111

Award of Contract for Parks and Recreation Storage Building
Parks & Recreation Storage Building 114

Award of Disaster Debris Management and Recovery Contract
to Crowder Gulf

Disaster Debris Management-Crowder Gulf 121
Approval of Revised Job Description-Deputy Director of
Elections

Job Description-Deputy Director of Elections 124
Approval of Revised Job Descriptions-Planning and Inspections

Permit Officer I 126

1



Permit Officer II 130
Building Inspector I,II, & III 134
Chief Building Inspector 139

2

Amending Section 10-63 of Chapter 10 of the Currituck 
County Code of Ordinances 

143

Amending Section 10-63 of Chapter 10 of the Currituck County 
Code of Ordinances 

Services-Lower Currituck Volunteer Fire Department and Corolla 
Fire & Rescue

Services - Corolla Fire & Rescue
Services - Lower Currituck VFD 

145
147



Document last changed: 7/3/2014 11:51 AM 

REVISED 
Currituck County 

Board of Commissioners Agenda 
Historic Currituck County Courthouse 

Date: Monday, July 07, 2014 Time: 7:00 PM 

Work Session 

6:00 PM  Board of Equalization & Review 

7:00 pm Call to Order 

A) Invocation-Reverend Bill Masciangelo, Moyock United Methodist Church
B) Pledge of Allegiance
C) Approval of Agenda
D) Public Comment

Please limit comments to items not appearing on the regular agenda;
please limit comments to 3 minutes.

Administrative Reports 

A) Recognition of Service Presentation to Commissioner McCord.

B) Presentation of Award for Excellence in Financial Reporting

Public Hearings 

A) Consideration and Action: PB 14-10 Bradley Smith:  Request a
conditional rezoning of 20 acres from Agricultural (AG) to Conditional
District- Single Family Mainland (CD-SFM) on property located in Moyock
on Dustin Lane which is located on the south side of Tulls Creek Road,
Tax Map 14, Parcels 18J, 18K, and 18L, Moyock Township.

3



Document last changed: 7/3/2014 11:51 AM 

New Business 

A) Memorandum and Agreement to Partner with Wildlife Resources
Commission for Waterlily Boating Access Area.

B) Board Appointments:
1. Commissioner Appointment to Albemarle Regional Planning

Organization
2. Appointments to Whalehead Preservation Trust

C) Consent Agenda:
1. Approval of June 16, 2014 Minutes
2. Budget Amendments
3. CDBG Monthly Status Report
4. Centennial Proclamation for NC Cooperative Extension
5. Consideration and Action:  Crawford Township Volunteer Fire

Department Request to Replace Failed Ladder Truck
6. Petition to NCDOT for State Maintenance of Arabian Lane.
7. Report of Insolvents and Resolution Approving the Settlement with

the Tax Collector
8. Award of Contract for Parks and Rec Storage Building
9. Award of Disaster Debris Management and Recovery Contract to

Crowder Gulf
10. Approval of Revised Job Description-Deputy Director of Elections
11. Approval of Revised Job Descriptions-Planning and Inspections
12. Ordinance Amending Section 10-63 of Chapter 10 of the Currituck

County Code of Ordinances to Allow Certain Activities Involving
Motor Vehicles on the Beach Strand and Foreshore from the Dare
County Line to the North Beach Access Ramp Between May 1
and September 30.

13. First Amendment to Contract for Fire Protection and Rescue
Services-Lower Currituck VFD and Corolla Fire & Rescue.

D) Commissioner’s Report

E) County Manager’s Report

Closed Session 
Closed Session pursuant to G.S.  143-318.11(a)(3) to consult with the County 
Attorney in order to preserve attorney-client confidentiality in the matter entitled 
Swan Beach Corolla, LLC v. Currituck County, and other legal matters. 

Adjourn 

44



Currituck County 
Agenda Item Summary Sheet

Agenda Item Title 

PB  14-10  Bradley Smith requests conditional rezoning of 20 acres from Agricultural (AG) to Conditional District- Single 
Family Mainland (CD-SFM) on property located in Moyock on Dustin Lane which is located on the south side of Tulls Creek 
Road, PIN  0014-000-018L-000, 0014-000-018J-0000, and 0014-000-018K-0000,  Moyock Township. 

Brief Description of Agenda Item 

The applicant is conditional rezoning of 20 acres located in Moyock on Dustin Lane.  The proposed development will 
consist of 13 residential lots; including 2 family subdivision lots.  The applicant proposes the following zoning conditions: 

1. Residential use
2. Minimum lot size 40,000 square feet
3. Property lines and road lines may be shifted to accommodate stormwater drainage, utilites, wetland issues,

And to meet the UDO requirements.

A community meeting was held on April 15, 2014 at Moyock Library and attendees had questions regarding the proposed 
development.  

Planning Board Recommendation: 
Mr. Cooper moved to approve PB 14-10 due to its consistency with the goals, objectives, and policies of the 
Moyock Small Area Plan, compatible with existing and proposed uses surrounding the land subject to the 
application, and is the appropriate zoning district and uses for the land with the following conditions: 

• If surrounding land becomes an active agricultural use prior to preliminary plat approval, the farmland
compatibility buffer shall be addressed. 

• Allow a reduction in the minimum index score if the adjacent properties are developed at the time of
preliminary and final plat with the possibility of establishing a pedestrian access to the rear of the 
property. 

Ms. Bell seconded the motion and motion carried unanimously. 

Board Action Requested

Action 

Person Submitting Agenda Item 

Ben Woody 

Presenter of Agenda Item 

Ben Woody 

5



CASE ANALYSIS FOR THE  
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

DATE:  July 7, 2014 
PB 14-10  Bradley Smith 

 
ITEM:   PB 14-10  Bradley Smith: a conditional rezoning of 20 acres from Agricultural 

(AG) to  Conditional District- Single Family Mainland (CD-SFM).  
 

LOCATION: Moyock -Dustin Lane, off Tulls Creek Road. 

TAX ID: 0014-000-018L-0000 
 0014-000-018J-0000 
 0014-000-018K0000 
 
OWNER:  Anthony Smith 
   113 Soundview Drive 
   Aydlett, NC  
   Bradley Smith 
   113 Palmer Road 
   Camden, NC  27921 
 
   Michelle Smith 
   113 Palmer Road 
   Camden, NC  27921 
 
APPLICANT:  Bradley Smith 
 
LAND USE/ZONING OF SURROUNDING PROPERTY: 
 Land Use Zoning 
NORTH: Undeveloped/Residential SFM 
SOUTH Undeveloped SFM/PUD Overlay 
EAST:  Undeveloped/Residential AG 
WEST: Undeveloped/Residential AG 
 
LAND USE PLAN  
CLASSIFICATION:  The 2006 Land Use Plan classifies the site as Rural within the Moyock 

subarea.  
 
MOYOCK SAP: The Moyock Small Area Plan classifies the property as Limited Service. 

 
The Limited Service designation typically has limited availability to 
infrastructure and services and low to moderate residential densities.   
Residential densities in the limited service area range between 1 – 1.5 units 
per acre.    Policies supporting the request include: 
 
Policy TR 2 Ensure that all development is designed with an interconnected, 
multi-modal transportation network between neighborhoods, activity centers, 
and other destinations to improve mobility and emergency access. 
Development of an interconnected road network east and west of Highway 
168 that allows north-south movement for local residential traffic is strongly 
encouraged. 

 

 
PB 14-10  Bradley Smith 

Conditional Rezoning 
Page 1 of 8 

6



CURRENT ZONING: Agricultural (AG)    
 
PROPOSED ZONING:  Conditional District-Single Family Mainland (CD-SFM) 
  
CURRENT USE: Undeveloped/Residential (under construction) 
 
SIZE OF SITE: 19.83 acres (calculated lot area) 
 20 acres (including right of way) 
 
ZONING HISTORY: Residential Agriculture-20 (RA-20) 1973 Zoning Map  
 Agriculture-40 (A-40)  1974 Zoning Map 
 Agriculture (A)   1989 Zoning Map  
 
UTILITIES:   County water is available to serve this development and sewer will be 

handled by on-site septic.   
 
TRANSPORTATION:  The proposed development fronts on Tulls Creek Road and the proposed 

road within the development will be constructed to NCDOT standards. 

FLOOD ZONE: The proposed development is predominately located in the Shaded X 
flood zone (500-year) and approximately 1.4 acres is located in the X 
flood zone. 

 
WETLANDS: The county wetland inventory maps indicate the property has wetland 

characteristics; however, a wetland delineation is not required until 
submittal of the subdivision.  The surveyor has indicated no wetlands are 
thought to exist on the subject property.  The county wetland inventory 
maps do not confirm the existence of wetlands on the property. 

 
SOILS: The proposed development is located on Roanoke soils and are 

considered poorly drained and unsuitable for conventional on-site septic 
systems.  All lots must be evaluated for on-site septic systems prior to the 
submittal of the preliminary subdivision plat.   

 
PLAN REQUEST: 13 residential lots (including 2 family subdivision lots) 
 
PROPOSED ZONING CONDITIONS: 

1. Residential use. 
2. Minimum lot size 40,000 square feet. 
3. Property lines and road lines may be shifted to accommodate stormwater drainage, utilities, 

wetland issues, and to meet UDO requirements.  
 
COMMUNITY  MEETING: 
A community meeting was held on April 15, 2014 at the Moyock Library.  The attendees had 
questions regarding the proposed development including size of properties, types of homes, home 
sizes, property drainage, and impacts to surrounding properties.   
 
TECHNICAL REVIEW COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
The conditional zoning process provides an opportunity for an applicant to propose use limitations or 
development conditions that ensure development proposals are consistent with the policies set forth in 
adopted plans.  The TRC recommends approval of the proposed request.  The conditional rezoning 

 
PB 14-10  Bradley Smith 

Conditional Rezoning 
Page 2 of 8 

7



request is consistent with the goals, objectives, and policies of the Moyock Small Area Plan, and is 
compatible with existing and proposed uses surrounding the land subject to the application, and is the 
appropriate zoning district and uses for the land. 
 
Additional Staff Comments:  
 
The lands immediately adjacent to the development do not contain an active agricultural use.  According to 
the applicant, a crop was not planted on the adjacent properties in the past year.  It was determined that 
a farmland compatibility buffer will not be required unless the lands are in an active agricultural use 
associated with a bona fide farm at the time of preliminary plat submittal. 
 
In addition, street connectivity is proposed to an adjacent lot that was part of an exempt subdivision more 
than 10 acres in area which is required to meet internal street connectivity requirements of the UDO.  
Although the placement of this interconnection meets the requirements of the UDO it may not be consistent 
with the purpose and intent of the internal street connectivity requirements of the UDO.  Staff suggests the 
board establish a condition that would allow a reduction in the minimum index score if the adjacent 
properties are developed at the time of preliminary and final plat with the possibility of establishing a 
pedestrian access to the N/F Ward lands. 
 
PLANNING BOARD RECOMMENDATION: 
The Planning Board recommended approval of the conditional rezoning request with staff 
recommendations and the following conditions:  
 

• If surrounding land becomes an active agricultural use prior to preliminary plat approval, the 
farmland compatibility buffer shall be addressed. 

• Allow a reduction in the minimum index score if the adjacent properties are developed at the time 
of preliminary and final plat with the possibility of establishing a pedestrian access to the rear of 
the property. 

 
 

 
 
THE APPLICATION AND RELATED MATERIALS ARE AVAILABLE ON THE COUNTY’S WEBSITE 

http://www.co.currituck.nc.us/board-of-commissioners-minutes-current.cfm 
 

 
 
 
 
 
  

 
PB 14-10  Bradley Smith 

Conditional Rezoning 
Page 3 of 8 

8



PLANNING BOARD DISCUSSION (6-10-14) 
Mr. Cooper asked what are the allowable surfaces for the pedestrian access. 
 
Ms. Voliva said it would have to meet the ADA requirements and it could be concrete, asphalt, or wood 
surface. 
 
Mr. Cooper said lots 1 and 13 are currently under construction.  Mr. Cooper asked if the five foot non-
access easement was incorporated in the current site plan for these two houses. 
 
Ms. Voliva said yes. 
 
Mr. Smith provided a brief overview of the family subdivision. The affordable homes will range from 
$250,000 to $350,000. 
 
Mr. Cooper asked Mr. Smith his thoughts on the pedestrian access to the rear of the property.   
 
Mr. Smith said he is okay with it if it happens. 
 
Ms. Bell stated she does not see $250,000 to $350,000 as affordable housing to the average person who 
is on a fixed income. 
 
Mr. Cooper said land and development costs have increased and construction material continues to go up. 
 
Ms. Overstreet said the building codes requirements can make the cost of homes increase too. 
 
ACTION 
Mr. Cooper moved to approve PB 14-10 due to its consistency with the goals, objectives, and policies of 
the Moyock Small Area Plan, compatible with existing and proposed uses surrounding the land subject to 
the application, and is the appropriate zoning district and uses for the land with the following conditions: 

• If surrounding land becomes an active agricultural use prior to preliminary plat approval, the 
farmland compatibility buffer shall be addressed. 

• Allow a reduction in the minimum index score if the adjacent properties are developed at the time 
of preliminary and final plat with the possibility of establishing a pedestrian access to the rear of 
the property. 

Ms. Bell seconded the motion and motion carried unanimously.  
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
PB 14-10  Bradley Smith 

Conditional Rezoning 
Page 4 of 8 

9



 
PB 14-10  Bradley Smith 

Conditional Rezoning 
Page 5 of 8 

10



 
 
 
 

 
 

PB 14-10  Bradley Smith 
Conditional Rezoning 

Page 6 of 8 

11



TRC COMMENTS: 
 
To:   Bradley Smith 
 Anthony Smith 
 
From: Donna Voliva, Senior Planner 
  
Date: May 21, 2014 
 
Subject: PB 14-10  Bradley Smith - Conditional Rezoning 
 
 
The following comments have been received for the May 21, 2014 TRC meeting.  Modifications 
of the request must be submitted by May 27, 2014 in order to remain on the June 10, 2014 
Planning Board agenda.  TRC comments are valid for six months from the date of the TRC 
meeting. 
 
Planning, Donna Voliva 
Reviewed 

1. All property owners of the request must sign the application (Bradley K. Smith and 
Michelle K. Smith) A two lot family subdivision was approved for Bradley K. Smith and 
Michelle K. Smith and recorded on March 27, 2014.   A single family dwelling is under 
construction on each of the two lots that are intended for sale.  The rezoning includes the 
two family subdivision lots and it appears as the family subdivision was created as a part 
of the major subdivision and should be included in the major subdivision.  This would affect 
the open space calculations and recreation and park area dedication that are part of the 
subdivision requirements. 

2. The proposed Interconnectivity does not meet the requirements (road design).  Further 
discussion regarding the interconnectivity and pedestrian circulation may be necessary. 

3. Staff suggests the applicant modify one zoning condition that would require the minimum 
lot size to be a square footage measurement instead of an acreage calculation (i.e. 
40,000 square feet). 

4. Please provide approximate drainage patterns. 
5. Please indicate the farmland compatibility buffer. 

 
Currituck County Engineer, Eric Weatherly 
Currituck Soil and Water, Mike Doxey 
Approved 

1. Refer to the UDO and the new Stormwater Manual for stormwater design rules and 
guidance (2yr, wooded, pre-developed/10yr post-developed). Stormwater forms, plans, 
and calculations will be required at construction submittal. A stormwater narrative will be 
required at preliminary plat submittal. 
 

Currituck County Utilities, Pat Irwin 
Approved 
 
Albemarle Regional Health Services, Joe Hobbs 
Reviewed 

 
PB 14-10  Bradley Smith 

Conditional Rezoning 
Page 7 of 8 

12



1. DEVELOPER NEEDS TO CONSULT WITH KEVIN CARVER RS 
WITH CURRITUCK COUNTY HEALTH DEPT.(252-232-6603) IN ORDER TO 
EVALUATE EACH LOT TO DETERMINE SOIL SUITABILITY FOR SEWAGE 
TREATMENT AND DISPOSAL FOR THIS PROPOSED SUB-DIVISION.  

 
Currituck County GIS, Harry Lee 
Reviewed 
 
Currituck County Fire Marshal, James Mims 
No comment 
 
NC State Archaeology, Lawrence Abbot 
No comment 

1. No previously recorded archaeological sites noted within the project area.    An 
archaeological survey is not recommended.  

 
NC Division of Coastal Management, Charlan Owens  
No comment 
 
US Postal Service, Moyock Postmaster 

1. Please contact the local postmaster (Moyock) to determine the mode of delivery and type 
of delivery equipment. 

 
The following TRC member did not provide comments: 
 
Currituck County Building Inspections, Spence Castello 
 
 
 
 

 
PB 14-10  Bradley Smith 

Conditional Rezoning 
Page 8 of 8 

13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



WHALEHEAD PRESERVATION TRUST BOARD OF DIRECTORS
2 Year Terms

Nominated Date of
Incumbent by New Appointee Nominated by Appointment End of Term

6/3/2013
Cliff Scott District 1 * Aydlett          Eff. 5/1/2010 2nd Term 5/1/2016

3/1/2010
Andy Newbern District 2 * Griggs          Eff. 5/1/2010 1st Term  5/1/2015

10/3/2011
Carl Ross District 3 * Petrey Eff. 5/1/2010 1st Term  5/1/2016

3/1/2010
Jeanne Meiggs District 4 * McCord          Eff. 5/1/2010 1st Term  5/1/2016

3/1/2010
Josh Bass** District 5 * Gilbert          Eff. 5/1/2010 1st Term  5/1/2014

6/3/2013
Don Cheek* At-Large * Martin          Eff. 5/1/2013 1st Term  5/1/2016

3/1/2010
Sharon Twiddy At-Large * O'Neal          Eff. 5/1/2010 1st Term  5/1/2015

6/3/2013
Travis Morris **          Eff. 5/1/2013 2nd Term 5/1/2016

6/3/2013
Penny Leary-Smith **          Eff. 5/1/2010 1st Term  5/1/2016

6/3/2013 Unexpired Term
**          Eff. 5/1/2010 1st Term  5/1/2014

3/1/2010
Kimberlee Hoey ** Eff. 5/1/2010 1st Term  5/1/2015

* Resigned-To Be Replaced
**May be Reappointed

*  7 Members Must Be County Residents
** 4 Members May Be Non-Residents

Commissioner Griggs

34



CURRITUCK COUNTY 
NORTH CAROLINA 
June 16, 2014 
 
The Board of Commissioners met in the Historic Courthouse Conference Room at 6:00 PM for a 
work session on Moyock Wastewater with Eric Weatherly, County Engineer.  Discussion 
included current and projections for commercial and residential use. 
 
The Board of Commissioners met at 7:00 PM for its regularly scheduled meeting at the Historic 
Courthouse in the Board Meeting Room with the following members present: Chairman Paul 
O’Neal, Vice-Chair Paul Martin, Commissioners Aydlett, Gilbert, Griggs, McCord and Petrey.   
 
Chairman O’Neal called the meeting to order at 7:02 PM and announced that the Board had met 
in a work session at 6:00 PM on Moyock Wastewater. 
 

A) Invocation 
 
Reverend Dawne Hollis of Mt. Zion United Methodist Church gave the invocation. 
 

B) Pledge of Allegiance 
  
Reverend Dawne Hollis led the Pledge of Allegiance.  
  

C) Approval of Agenda 
 
Commissioner Gilbert moved to approve the agenda as presented.  Commissioner Martin 
seconded the motion.   Motion carried unanimously. 
 
APPROVED AGENDA 
 

Work Session 

6:00 PM.  Moyock Wastewater 
 
7:00 pm Call to Order 

A) Invocation-Reverend Dawne Hollis, Mt. Zion United Methodist Church 
B) Pledge of Allegiance 
C) Approval of Agenda 
D) Public Comment 

Please limit comments to items not appearing on the regular agenda; please limit comments 
to 3 minutes. 

Administrative Reports 

A) Presentation of Certificate of Appreciation to Mary S. Gilbert, Clerk to the Board of 
Commissioners 

Public Hearings 

A) Public Hearing and Possible Action on Annual Budget for the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2015. 

 

35



2  June 16, 2014 
 

B) PB 14-03 Currituck County - Outdoor Shooting Ranges: Request to amend the Unified 
Development Ordinance to establish Outdoor Shooting Ranges as a permitted use in the Resource 
Conservation (RC), Agricultural (AG), and Heavy Industrial (HI) zoning districts with use specific 
standards 

 
Old Business 

A) An Ordinance of the Currituck County Board of Commissioners Amending Section 10-64 of 
Chapter 10 of the Currituck County Code of Ordinances to Authorize Law Enforcement Seizure of 
ATV Permits that are Expired, Revoked, Cancelled, Suspended, Unlawfully or Erroneously Issued 
or Unlawfully Used. 

B) An Ordinance of the Currituck County Board of Commissioners Defining and Regulating Peddlers 
and Solicitors in Currituck County. 

 
New Business 

A) Board Appointments: 
1. Appointments to Game Commission 

B) Consent Agenda: 
1. Approval of June 2, 2014, minutes. 
2. Budget Amendments 
3. Approval of ABC Board Lease for Corolla Store Space. 
4. Authorize County Manager to execute Dominion Power agreement to provide service to Corolla 

Public Access facility located on Corolla Village Road. 

5. Consideration and Action-Purchasing Requests for Moyock Fire Department. 
C) Commissioner’s Report 
D) County Manager’s Report  

Special Meeting 

TOURISM DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 

A) Public Hearing and Possible Action on the Fiscal Year 2015 Tourism Development Authority 
Budget. 

B) Discussion of Travel and Tourism Department's Support of Funds Program Procedures. 
 

Closed Session 
Closed Session pursuant to G.S.  143-318.11(a)(3) to consult with the County Attorney in order to preserve 
attorney-client confidentiality in the matter entitled Swan Beach Corolla, LLC v. Currituck County, and other 
legal matters. 
 
Adjourn 

 

D)  Public Comment 
 
Chairman O’Neal opened the Public Comment period. 
 
Mary Etheridge, Shawboro, stated her family is involved in litigation with the County regarding 
approval of a junkyard in Shawboro. She felt she had been bullied by Chairman O’Neal at the 
last BOC meeting, and she is only trying to inform residents of her situation.  She stated she 
was not disrespectful but felt Chairman O’Neal was trying to intimidate her and her family with 
regard to a lot that they inherited, from which he claims contaminants from gasoline tanks are 
leaking into the groundwater and poisoning neighboring wells.  Ms. Etheridge said no one 
should be treated the way she has been, when a citizen dares to speak at a public meeting. 

36



3  June 16, 2014 
 

 
Chairman O’Neal said all of his statements can be backed up by staff and documentation.  
Chairman O’Neal asked County Attorney Ike McRee to recount the process that resulted in the 
zoning for the recycling center.  Mr. McRee did so, also addressing the intimidation claims 
against Chairman O’Neal, and recalling the history of the litigation, appeals and the current 
status of the case with regard to the recycling center and noted that the state is working on 
remediation for the contaminated lot.   
 
Ginger Sikes, Currituck, Animal Lover’s Assistance League (ALAL), told everyone about Wheels 
for Paws event, Saturday, June 21, at Currituck County High School, a free event for attendees.  
Summer program, Fun with Animals, begins June 17, at the Currituck County Animal Shelter. 
 
Sharon Martz, Point Harbor, thanked the Board for taking action to find answers with regard to 
EMS situation.  She asked the Board to look deep and not just accept the superficial findings.  
Ms. Martz supports reinstatement of Teresa Wheeler.  She supports the Animal Lover’s 
Assistance League and feels the Board should as well due to ALAL’s experience and 
reputation.  She showed a current article from The Shopper magazine about ALAL. 
 
Walter Williams, Knotts Island, was impressed with the Ranchland development improvements.  
He spoke of County spending on marketing, media, and advertising and suggested looking for 
businesses in Currituck who can provide these services rather than spending our dollars outside 
our community. 
 
Sybil O’Neal, Maple, stated that 78 employees have left EMS since Chief Glover’s arrival.  She 
also said that the lot is owned by Kitty’s brother-in-law and it is not Kitty’s fight. 
 
There being no further comments, Chairman O’Neal closed the Public Comment period. 
 
Administrative Reports 
 

A) Presentation of Certificate of Appreciation to Mary S. Gilbert, Clerk to 
the Board of Commissioner 

Chairman O’Neal asked Mary, the Board, County Manager and County Attorney to come to the 
front for the presentation of a plaque and certificate.  Chairman O’Neal thanked Mary for her 
outstanding service over the years.  Each Commissioner and member of staff said a few words 
to Mary and wished her well in her retirement.  Mary thanked the Board and Dan Scanlon, 
County Manager, for their kind wishes, and said she has enjoyed working for the County.  She 
stated she enjoyed all of the Board members she had come to know over the years, they have 
all been very kind to her and that her Board is the best.   
 
Public Hearings 
 

A) Public Hearing and Possible Action on Annual Budget for the Fiscal Year 
Ending June 30, 2015. 

 
Chairman O’Neal opened the public hearing and stated no one signed up for comment.  
Chairman O’Neal closed the public hearing and noted the good job by the County Manager, 
Finance Director and department heads in their ability to decrease the budget by 2% and 

37



4  June 16, 2014 
 

include a ½ cent property tax decrease.  Commissioner Petrey moved to approve the budget.  
Commissioner Gilbert seconded.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
 
  

38



CURRITUCK  COUNTY 
  NORTH CAROLINA 
  

   
   SALARY AND COMPENSATION RESOLUTION 

  FOR THE 2014-2015 FISCAL YEAR 
  

   
   

BE IT RESOLVED by the County Commissioners that the  following salaries and other compensation  

   
   SECTION 1 - BOARDS 

  
   Board of Adjustments 

  Members $50. per meeting 
 

   Airport Advisory Board 
  Members $50. per meeting 

 
   Board of Commissioners 

  Chairman $1300. per month   

 Members $1200. per month   

   

 Stormwater Advisory Board  

 Members $50. per meeting 

 

   Economic Development Board 
  Members $50. per meeting 

 

39



6  June 16, 2014 
 

   Tourism Development Authority   $50. per meeting 
  Members 

  
   Board of Elections 

  Chairman $75. per month plus $8.00  per meeting hour 
plus travel reimbursement at per diem rate 

 Members $25. per month plus $8.00  per meeting hour 
plus travel reimbursement at per diem rate 

 Chief Judge $150. on election day, $20. on canvass day, $15. 
on instruction day plus travel reimbursement at 
per diem rate 

 Judge $100. on election day, $15. on instruction day 
plus travel reimbursement at per diem rate 

 Assistants $85 on election day, $15. on instruction day plus 
travel reimbursement at per diem rate 

   
 

   Board of Equalization 
  Members $100. per day; $50. per half day 

 

   Land Transfer Tax Appeals Board 
  Members $50. per meeting 

 

   Library Board of Trustees 
  Members $50. per meeting 

  Other  
 Jury Commission $50. per day 

   
 Planning Board 

  Members $50. per meeting 

 

40



7  June 16, 2014 
 

   Social Services Board 
  Members $50. per meeting 

 Chairman $75. per meeting 

 Parks and Recreation Board         
  

      Members $50. per meeting 
                     $50. per 
meeting 

   Fire And EMS Board 
  Members $50. per meeting 

 

   Senior Citizens Advisory  Board $50. per meeting 
 

   Nutrition Board $50. per meeting 
 

   

   

Payments made to board members (except the Board of Commissioners and Board of Elections) 
are considered fees for the payment of all expenses incurred while serving in a voluntary 
capacity unless additional compensation is provided for in the enacting ordinance. 

 

   SECTION 3 - NEW APPOINTMENTS 
  Compensation 
  The  County Manager  is authorized  without further approval  to enroll new personnel at a 

grade level not to exceed that of step 3; however, no new position may be established or salaries 
increased without the approval of the County Board of Commissioners. 

 
   Minimum Wage 

  

41



8  June 16, 2014 
 

Not  withstanding  the  above, the  County Manager  may  raise the salary of any employee to 
the Federal minimum wage level without further approval from the County Board of 
Commissioners. 

 
   SECTION 4 - PART-TIME AND TEMPORARY EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 

 
   County employee benefits, including but not limited to vacation leave, holiday leave, sick leave, 
retirement, 401k, and health insurance, shall not be provided for part-time and temporary 
employees unless otherwise provided for by the Board of Commissioners. 

 

   PART-TIME/TEMPORARY PAY RATES 
  Hourly 
  EMT Basic - Temporary $13.94 - $14.47 per hr 

EMT Intermediate - Temporary $15.76 - $16.37 per hr 
EMT Paramedic - Temporary $19.04 - $19.78 per hr 
Airport Lineman - Part-time $13.68  per hr 
Airport Manager - Temporary $25.56  per hr 
Library Assistant I -Part-time $12.79  per hr 
Deputy I  -Part-time $16.36  per hr 
Detention Officer - Part-time  $13.94  per hr 
Maintenance Helper - Temporary $11.90  per hr 
Camp Counselors - Seasonal $9.00  per hr 
Visitor Relations Coordinator - Temporary $12.79  per hr 

   Parks & Recreation Temporary Staff 
  Janitor - All Sports $7.25  per hr 

Scorekeeper - All Sports $7.25  per hr 
Score Board Operator - Tackle Football $18.00  per game 
Site Coordinator - All Sports $14.50  per hr 
Referee - 5 - 9 yr old Basketball $18.00  per game 
Referee - 10 - 15 yr old Basketball $20.00  per game 

42



9  June 16, 2014 
 

Referee - Flag Football $18.00  per game 
Referee - Youth Volleyball $18.00  per game 
Referee - Soccer $18.00  per game 
Umpire - Baseball Ages 7 - 8 $18.00  per game 
Umpire - Softball 8U $18.00  per game 
Umpire - Baseball Ages 9 - 10 $24.00  per game 
Umpire - Softball 10U - 16U $24.00  per game 
Umpire - Baseball Ages 11 - 15 $27.00  per game 
Umpire - Softball 18U $30.00  per game 

   

SECTION 5 - TRAVEL 
  

   Per Diem Rate 
  Subject to the approval of their department head, employees are entitled to travel reimbursement 

for use of a personal vehicle while transacting County business at the current standard mileage 
rate allowed by the Internal Revenue Service.   

 

   Adopted this  16th of June 2014. 
   

 

 

 

 

43



10  June 16, 2014 
 

 

CURRITUCK 
COUNTY 

 
 

CLASSIFICATION BY SALARY GRADE 

 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2015 

   
  

  

SALARY GRADE SALARY RANGE CLASSIFICATION 

50 $22,889-$31,373 Custodian 
50.5 $24,186-$33,765 Senior Center Assistant Coordinator 
51 $24,747-$33,974 Maintenance Helper 
    Park Attendant 
    Rural Attendant 
    SOS Assistant 

52 $26,603-$36,611 Accounting Clerk I 

    Community Social Services Assistant DSS 

    DCI CP/Clerk 
    Deputy Register of Deeds 
    Library Assistant I 
    Meter Reader 
    Permit Officer 
    Processing Assistant IV 
    Public Information Assistant IV 
    Recreation Assistant 

44



11  June 16, 2014 
 

    Secretary I 

    Tax Clerk I 
    Visitor Relations Coordinator 

53 $28,462-$39,177 Line Maintenance Mechanic Helper 
    Library Assistant II 
    Maintenance/Repair Worker 
    Sales & Market Associate 
    Lineman - Airport 
    Tax Clerk II 
    Utilities Customer Service Representative 

53.5 $28,998-$40,157 Detention Officer 
54 $30,319-$41,776 4H Program Associate 
    Animal Control Officer 
    Assistant Register of Deeds 
    Deputy Director of Elections 
    District Administrator 
    F&C Sciences Associate 
    Income Maintenance Caseworker I 
    Library Associate I 
    Permit Officer II 
    Public Info Asst V 
    Accounting Clerk II 

45



12  June 16, 2014 
 

    Rural Center Manager 
    Telecommunicator Trainee 

54.5 $30,892-$42,821 Intake Officer  
55 $32,178-$44,380 *Library Associate II 
    Accounting Clerk III 
    *Administrative Assistant I 
    Deputy Tax Collector 

    Line Maintenance Mechanic 
    Maintenance/Repair Worker Electrician 

    Park Superintendent 
    Promo Coordinator 
    Recreation Specialist 
    Supervisor Visitor Center 
    Telecommunicator I 
    Tourism Promo & Event Coordinator 
    Utilities Customer Service Supervisor 

55.5 $32,788-$45,489 EMT Basic/Firefighter 
    EMT Intermediate Firefighter 

56 $34,037-$46,983 Water Plant Operator Trainee   
    Deputy Trainee 

    Emergency Management Program Assistant 
    Income Maint Caseworker II 

    Planner Technician 

46



13  June 16, 2014 
 

    Social Worker I 
    Support Technician 
    Telecommunicator II 
    Wastewater ORC Trainee 

56.5 $35,343-$49,609 Animal Control Supervisor 
    Sergeant Detention Officer 

57 $35,894-$49,582 *Administrative Assistant II 
    Accounting Technician 
    Building Inspector I 
    Deputy Emergency Management Coordinator 
    Deputy Sheriff I 
    Development Code Enforcement  Officer 
    Human Resources Assistant 

57 $35,894-$49,582 Maintenance Supervisor 
    Rural Center Director 
    Wastewater ORC   
    Water Plant Operator 
    Water Plant Operator/Lab Technician 

58 $37,752-$52,185 Deputy Sheriff II 
    Income Maint Caseworker III 
    Income Maint Investigator II 
    Training Officer 

59 $39,609-$54,786 Building Inspector II probationary/ FQ Inspect I 

47



14  June 16, 2014 
 

    Deputy Sheriff III 
    Detective I 
    EMT Paramedic/Firefighter 
    Financial & Budget Assistant 
    Marketing Program Manager  
    Planner I 
    Tax Appraiser 

60 $41,468-$57,388 *Administrative Officer I 
    *Communications Supervisor 
    *Income Maintenance Supervisor II 
    *Lieutenant Detention Officer 
    Detective II 

    E-Marketing/Web Development Specialist 
    Fire Marshal 
    GIS Specialist 
    Lieutenant - EMS 
    Risk Manager  
    Social Worker II 
    Soil & Water Technician 
    Water Distribution Supervisor Trainee 
    Web/AV Specialist 

60.5 $42,264-$58,823 *Senior Center Coordinator 
61 $43,326-$59,990 Building Inspector III probationary/FQ BI II 

48



15  June 16, 2014 
 

    Detective II 
    Director of Elections 
    GIS Coordinator 
    Paralegal 
    Planner II 
    Public Information Officer 
    Sergeant 

61 $43,326-$59,990 Water Distribution Supervisor 
62 $45,184-$62,592 *Building Superintendent 

    Social Worker III 
    Social Worker Invest/Assess Treatment 

63 $47,041-$65,192 Building Inspector III FQ 
    Engineering Technician 
    *Social Work Supervisor II 
    *Water Treatment Plant Supervisor 

64 $48,900-$67,794 *Chief Building Inspector  
    *Jail Superintendent 
    *Recreation Director 

    *Senior Planner 
65 $51,156-$70,954 *Administrative Assistant/Clerk to Board 
    *Airport Manager 
    *Captain - EMS 

49



16  June 16, 2014 
 

    *Manager Business Development/Airport Oper. 
    *Project Coordinator 

66 $52,617-$72,999 *Public Utilities Superintendent 
    *Social Worker Supervisor III 
    *Tourism Director 

67 $54,472-$75,597 *Emergency Management Director 
    *Lieutenant - Sheriff 

68 $56,330-$78,198 *Human Resources Director 
    *IT Director 
    *Tax Administrator 

69 $58,188-$80,800 *Captain - Sheriff 
70 $60,102-$83,480 *Chief Deputy - Sheriff  
71 $61,904-$86,003   
72 $63,763-$88,606   
73 $65,619-$91,205 *Economic Development Director 
74 $67,478-$93,809   
75 $69,335-$96,409 *Chief of EMS 
76 $71,194-$99,011 *Director of Social Services 
    *Finance Director 
    *Public Utilities Director 

77 $73,051-$101,611   
78 $74,910-$104,215   

50



17  June 16, 2014 
 

79 $76,768-$106,816   
80 $78,398-$109,098   
81 $80,357-$121,693   
82 $82,366-$124,735   
83 $84,426-$127,853   
84 $86,536-$131,050   
85 $88,700-$134,326   
86 $90,917-$137,684   
87 $93,054-$140,921 *County Manager 
88 $93,977-$142,318 *Planning Director 
89 $96,326-$145,876   
90 $98,735-$149,523   
91 $101,203-$153,261   
92 $103,347-$156,508 *Engineer 
93 $105,931-$160,421   
94 $108,579-$164,432   
95 $111,294-$168,542   
96 $114,076-$172,756   
97 $116,928-$177,075   
98 $119,851-$181,502   
99 $122,848-$186,039   
100 $125,919-$190,690   

51



18  June 16, 2014 
 

101 $129,067-$195,458   
102 $132,293-$200,344   
103 $135,601-$205,353   
104 $138,991-$210,486   
105 $142,465-$215,749   
106 $146,027-$221,142   
107 $149,678-$226,671   
108 $153,420-$232,338   
109 $157,255-$238,146   
110 $161,187-$244,100   
111 $165,206-$250,187 *Attorney 

*  indicates exempt 
status     

 Board determined *County Manager's  salary 

 
Board determined *Sheriff's salary 

 Board determined *Register of Deeds' salary 

 
Board determined *Attorney's  salary 

 

 

 

 

 

52



19  June 16, 2014 
 

COUNTY OF CURRITUCK 
  BUDGET ORDINANCE 
  For the Year Ending June 30, 2015 
  

      BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of Commissioners, County of Currituck, North Carolina that the following estimated 
resources, appropriations, and memoranda are adopted for the fiscal year commencing July 1, 2014 and ending June 
30, 2015. 

      SECTION 1.  GENERAL FUND 
  

      
 

A. Estimated Resources: 
  

   
Ad Valorem Taxes 

 

 $                 
26,480,015  

   
Other Taxes and Licenses 

 
5,576,760  

   
Intergovernmental Revenues 

 
3,112,939  

   
Permits and Fees 

 
2,230,122  

   
Sales and Services 

 
614,244  

   
Investment Earnings 

 
90,000  

   
Miscellaneous 

 
103,000  

     
38,207,080  

      
   

Transfers In 
 

7,366,106  

   
Fund Balance Appropriated 

 
3,078,429  

     
10,444,535  

      

   
    TOTAL ESTIMATED RESOURCES 

 

 $                 
48,651,615  

      
 

B. Appropriations: 
  

   
Administration 

 
 $                     580,245  

   
Legal 

 
323,112  

   
Governing Body 

 
144,433  

   
Elections 

 
191,601  

   
Finance 

 
463,716  

   
Information Technology Services 

 
678,965  

   
Human Resources 

 
154,541  

53



20  June 16, 2014 
 

   
Tax 

 
548,259  

   
Public Works 

 
1,319,232  

   
Public Utilities 

 
235,622  

   
Register of Deeds 

 
673,847  

   
Court Facilities  

 
212,095  

   
Agency Appropriations 

 
39,200  

   
Central Services 

 
682,500  

   
Sheriff 

 
6,029,846  

   
Detention Center 

 
2,143,633  

   
Animal Control 

 
443,832  

   
Jury Commission 

 
1,800  

   
Emergency Medical Services 

 
6,625,578  

   
Emergency Management 

 
238,921  

   
Communications 

 
990,204  

   
Inspections 

 
                        608,770  

   
Fire Services 

  
   

    Moyock Vol Fire Department 
 

226,219  

   
    Crawford Vol Fire Department 

 
315,675  

   
    Lower Currituck Vol Fire Department 

 
347,031  

   
    Corolla Vol Fire & Rescue Squad 

 
292,930  

   
    Carova Bch Vol Fire Department 

 
200,400  

   
    Knotts Island Vol Fire Department 

 
195,000  

   
Medical Examiner 

 
20,000  

   
Airport 

 
468,711  

   
Inter County Transit Authority 

 
76,513  

   
Soil Conservation 

 
143,778  

   
Forestry 

 
76,250  

   
Cooperative Extension 

 
454,899  

   
Economic Development 

 
330,252  

   
Planning 

 
                        774,711  

   
Health Administration 

 
127,000  

   
Mental Health 

 
63,000  

   
Social Services Administration 

 
3,079,620  

   
Public Assistance 

 
1,275,542  

   
County Assistance 

 
116,639  

   
Juvenile Justice Programs 

 
101,879  

54



21  June 16, 2014 
 

   
Parks & Recreation 

 
814,382  

   
Rural Center 

 
481,885  

   
Library 

 
562,704  

   
Senior Center 

 
363,801  

   
Local Current Expense 

 
9,235,978  

   
Capital Outlay 

 
1,000,000  

   
College of the Albemarle 

 
190,000  

   
Bonds Payable 

 
730,000  

   
Notes Payable 

 
1,566,092  

   
Interest 

 
196,789  

   
Appropriations to Other Funds 

 
1,493,983  

      

   
     TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS 

 

 $                 
48,651,615  

      SECTION 2.  TOURISM DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 
  

      
 

A. Estimated Resources: 
  

   
Other taxes and licenses 

 
10,028,839  

   
Other revenues 

 
95,040  

   
Transfer from other funds 

 
86,537  

   
Fund Balance Appropriated 

 
                        345,304  

   
     TOTAL ESTIMATED RESOURCES 

 

 $                 
10,555,720  

      
 

B. Appropriations: 
  

   
Tourism Promotion 

 
3,449,552  

      
   

Tourism Related Expenditures 
  

   
     Contributions for Whalehead Preservation Trust Operations 

 
550,000  

   
     Contributions for Whalehead Preservation Trust Capital 

 
250,000  

   
     Other 

 
6,306,168  

   
     TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS 

 

 $                 
10,555,720  

      SECTION 3.  REVALUATION FUND 
  

55



22  June 16, 2014 
 

      
 

A. Estimated Resources: 
  

   
Transfer In 

 
                        121,000  

   
     TOTAL ESTIMATED RESOURCES 

 
 $                     121,000  

      
 

B. Appropriations: 
  

   
Operations 

 
                        121,000  

   
     TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS 

 
 $                     121,000  

SECTION 4.  EMERGENCY EQUIPMENT REPLACEMENT FUND 
  

      
 

A. Estimated Resources: 
  

   
Transfer In 

 
267,000  

   
     TOTAL ESTIMATED RESOURCES 

 
 $                     267,000  

      
 

B. Appropriations: 
  

   
Capital Outlay 

 
267,000  

   
     TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS 

 
 $                     267,000  

      SECTION 5.  EMERGENCY TELEPHONE SYSTEM FUND 
  

      
 

A. Estimated Resources: 
  

   
Other taxes and licenses 

 
166,231  

   
Investment earnings 

 
4,000  

   
Fund Balance Appropriated 

 
                        149,619  

   
     TOTAL ESTIMATED RESOURCES 

 
 $                     319,850  

      
 

B. Appropriations: 
  

   
Operations 

 
156,850  

   
Capital Outlay 

 
163,000  

   
     TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS 

 
 $                     319,850  

      SECTION 6.  GUINEA MILL WATERSHED IMPROVEMENT FUND 
  

      
 

A. Estimated Resources: 
  

56



23  June 16, 2014 
 

   
Special district taxes 

 
10,517  

   
     TOTAL ESTIMATED RESOURCES 

 
 $                       10,517  

      
 

B. Appropriations: 
  

   
Operations 

 
10,517  

   
     TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS 

 
 $                       10,517  

      SECTION 7.  HOG BRIDGE DITCH WATERSHED IMPROVEMENT FUND 
  

      
 

A. Estimated Resources: 
  

   
Special district taxes 

 
1,230  

   
     TOTAL ESTIMATED RESOURCES 

 
 $                         1,230  

      
 

B. Appropriations: 
  

   
Operations 

 
1,230  

   
     TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS 

 
 $                         1,230  

      SECTION 8.  MOYOCK WATERSHED IMPROVEMENT FUND 
  

      
 

A. Estimated Resources: 
  

   
Special district taxes 

 
16,423  

   
     TOTAL ESTIMATED RESOURCES 

 
 $                       16,423  

      
 

B. Appropriations: 
  

   
Operations 

 
16,423  

   
     TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS 

 
 $                       16,423  

      SECTION 9. NORTHWEST WATERSHED IMPROVEMENT FUND 
  

      
 

A. Estimated Resources: 
  

   
Special district taxes 

 
2,618  

   
     TOTAL ESTIMATED RESOURCES 

 
 $                         2,618  

      
 

B. Appropriations: 
  

57



24  June 16, 2014 
 

   
Operations 

 
2,618  

   
     TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS 

 
 $                         2,618  

      SECTION 10. WHALEHEAD WATERSHED IMPROVEMENT FUND 
  

      
 

A. Estimated Resources: 
  

   
Special district taxes 

 
859,828  

   
Investment earnings 

 
4,300  

   
Appropriated Fund Balance 

 
378,591  

   
     TOTAL ESTIMATED RESOURCES 

 

 $                   
1,242,719  

      
 

B. Appropriations: 
  

   
Operations 

 
1,242,719  

   
     TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS 

 

 $                   
1,242,719  

      SECTION 11. WHALEHEAD BEACH SOLID WASTE COLLECTION  
  

   
     & DISPOSAL SERVICE DISTRICT 

  
      
 

A. Estimated Resources: 
  

   
Special district taxes 

 
138,521  

   
Investment earnings 

 
450  

   
     TOTAL ESTIMATED RESOURCES 

 
 $                     138,971  

      
 

B. Appropriations: 
  

   
Operations 

 
139,171  

   
     TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS 

 
 $                     139,171  

      SECTION 12. CAPITAL  IMPROVEMENT FUND 
  

      
 

A. Estimated Resources: 
  

   
Other taxes and licenses 

 
1,738,140  

   
     TOTAL ESTIMATED RESOURCES 

 

 $                   
1,738,140  

58



25  June 16, 2014 
 

      
 

B. Appropriations: 
  

   
Transfers out 

 
1,738,140  

   
     TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS 

 

 $                   
1,738,140  

      SECTION 13. SCHOOL CAPITAL FUND 
  

      
 

A. Estimated Resources: 
  

   
Other taxes and licenses 

 
1,642,459  

   
Fund Balance Appropriated 

 
124,041  

   
     TOTAL ESTIMATED RESOURCES 

 

 $                   
1,766,500  

      
 

B. Appropriations: 
  

   
Transfers out 

 
1,766,500  

   
     TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS 

 

 $                   
1,766,500  

      SECTION 14. TRANSFER TAX CAPITAL FUND 
  

      
 

A. Estimated Resources: 
  

   
Other taxes and licenses 

 
1,990,000  

   
     TOTAL ESTIMATED RESOURCES 

 

 $                   
1,990,000  

      
 

B. Appropriations: 
  

   
Operations 

 
700  

   
Contingency 

 
236,660  

   
Transfers out 

 
1,752,640  

   
     TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS 

 

 $                   
1,990,000  

      SECTION 15. LAND BANKING FUND 
  

      
 

A. Estimated Resources: 
  

59



26  June 16, 2014 
 

   
Transfers in 

 
200,000  

   
     TOTAL ESTIMATED RESOURCES 

 
 $                     200,000  

      
 

B. Appropriations: 
  

   
Transfers out 

 
200,000  

   
     TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS 

 
 $                     200,000  

      SECTION 16. OCEAN SANDS WATER AND SEWER FUND 
  

      
 

A. Estimated Resources: 
  

   
Special district taxes 

 
223,462  

   
Operating revenues 

 
1,278,750  

   
Non-operating revenues 

 
23,229  

   
     TOTAL ESTIMATED RESOURCES 

 

 $                   
1,525,441  

      
 

B. Appropriations: 
  

   
Administration 

 
30,000  

   
Water Treatment Operations 

 
474,900  

   
Sewer Treatment Operations 

 
1,020,541  

   
     TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS 

 

 $                   
1,525,441  

      SECTION 17. MAINLAND WATER FUND 
  

      
 

A. Estimated Resources: 
  

   
Operating revenues 

 
3,086,521  

   
Non-operating revenues 

 
9,500  

   
Retained earnings appropriated 

 
160,643  

   
     TOTAL ESTIMATED RESOURCES 

 

 $                   
3,256,664  

      
 

B. Appropriations: 
  

   
Administration 

 
193,734  

   
Water Treatment Operations 

 
1,167,921  

60



27  June 16, 2014 
 

   
Debt Service 

 
1,627,509  

   
Capital Outlay 

 
267,500  

   
     TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS 

 

 $                   
3,256,664  

      SECTION 18. NEWTOWN ROAD SEWER FUND 
  

      
 

A. Estimated Resources: 
  

   
Operating revenues 

 
14,910  

   
Non-operating revenues 

 
500  

   
     TOTAL ESTIMATED RESOURCES 

 
 $                       15,410  

      
 

B. Appropriations: 
  

   
Sewer Treatment Operations 

 
                          15,410  

   
     TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS 

 
 $                       15,410  

      SECTION 19. SOLID WASTE FUND 
  

      
 

A. Estimated Resources: 
  

   
Operating revenues 

 
2,736,745  

   
Non-operating revenues 

 
182,000  

   
Transfers in 

 
1,079,687  

   
Retained earnings appropriated 

 
274,688  

   
     TOTAL ESTIMATED RESOURCES 

 

 $                   
4,273,120  

      
 

B. Appropriations: 
  

   
Administration 

 
                        165,921  

   
Solid Waste Operations 

 
                     4,098,799  

   
Capital Outlay 

 
                            8,400  

   
     TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS 

 

 $                   
4,273,120  

      SECTION 20. MAPLE COMMERCE PARK FUND 
  

      

61



28  June 16, 2014 
 

 
A. Estimated Resources: 

  
   

Operating revenues 
 

20,500  

   
Non-operating revenues 

 
26,296  

   
     TOTAL ESTIMATED RESOURCES 

 
 $                       46,796  

      
 

B. Appropriations: 
  

   
Water Operations 

 
46,796  

     
 $                       46,796  

SECTION 21. MOYOCK COMMONS SEWER FUND 
  

      
 

A. Estimated Resources: 
  

   
Operating revenues 

 
66,480  

   
     TOTAL ESTIMATED RESOURCES 

 
 $                       66,480  

      
 

B. Appropriations: 
  

   
Administration 

 
                            7,756  

   
Sewer Operations 

 
                          58,724  

   
     TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS 

 
 $                       66,480  

      SECTION 22. SOUTHERN OUTER BANKS WATER FUND 
  

      
 

A. Estimated Resources: 
  

   
Operating revenues 

 
3,604,180  

   
Non-operating revenues 

 
171,865  

   
     TOTAL ESTIMATED RESOURCES 

 

 $                   
3,776,045  

      
 

B. Appropriations: 
  

   
Administration 

 
133,635  

   
Water Operations 

 
2,129,490  

   
Capital assets 

 
300,934  

   
Transfers out 

 
1,211,986  

     

 $                   
3,776,045  

      

62



29  June 16, 2014 
 

SECTION 23. MOYOCK CENTRAL SEWER FUND 
  

      
 

A. Estimated Resources: 
  

   
Operating revenues 

 
325,476  

   
     TOTAL ESTIMATED RESOURCES 

 
 $                     325,476  

      
 

B. Appropriations: 
  

   
Administration 

 
70,916  

   
Water Operations 

 
254,560  

     
 $                     325,476  

      SECTION 24. WALNUT ISLAND SEWER FUND 
  

      
 

A. Estimated Resources: 
  

   
Operating revenues 

 
113,000  

   
Non-operating revenues 

 
600  

   
     TOTAL ESTIMATED RESOURCES 

 
 $                     113,600  

      
 

B. Appropriations: 
  

   
Administration 

 
65,192  

   
Water Operations 

 
48,408  

     
 $                     113,600  

      SECTION 25. POST-EMPLOYMENT RETIREMENT BENEFITS FUND 
  

      
 

A. Estimated Resources: 
  

   
Retiree benefits 

 
224,043  

   
     TOTAL ESTIMATED RESOURCES 

 
 $                     224,043  

      
 

B. Appropriations: 
  

   
Operations 

 
224,043  

     
 $                     224,043  

      SECTION 26. AD VALOREM TAX RATE ESTABLISHED 
  

63



30  June 16, 2014 
 

      
 

There is hereby levied a tax rate of Forty-Eight cents ($0.48) per One Hundred dollars ($100) valuation of all real and 
personal property situated in the County of Currituck on January 1, 2014 for the purpose of raising the revenue listed 
as "Ad Valorem Taxes" in Section 1, Part A of this ordinance.  

 
      
 

The rate of tax is based on estimated total valuation of property for the purpose of taxation of $5,680,922,262 and an 
estimated rate of collection of 98.69%.  The estimated rate of collection is based on the fiscal year ended June 30, 
2013.  

 
      SECTION 27. SPECIAL DISTRICT TAX RATES ESTABLISHED 

  
      
 There is hereby levied tax rates (in cents) for Special Districts per One Hundred dollars ($100) valuation of all real 

and personal property situated in said district on January 1, 2013 for the purpose of raising the revenue listed as 
"Special District Taxes" in Part A, Sections 6 through 10 and Section 19 of this ordinance. 

 

 
      
   

Guinea Mill Watershed Improvement District 
 

0.010  

   
Hog Bridge Ditch Watershed Improvement District 

 
0.010  

   
Moyock Watershed Improvement District 

 
0.150  

   
Northwest Watershed Improvement District 

 
0.200  

   
Whalehead Watershed Improvement District 

 
0.155  

   
Whalehead Beach Solid Waste Collection & Disposal Service District 

 
0.025  

   
Ocean Sands Water & Sewer District 

 
0.050  

      
      SECTION 28. ANIMAL TAX RATE ESTABLISHED 

  
      
 

There is hereby levied an animal tax of Three dollars ($3.00) for all male and spayed female dogs and Six dollars 
($6.00) for all fertile female dogs listed for taxes as of January 1, 2013. 

 
      SECTION 29. SOLID WASTE COLLECTION AND DISPOSAL RATE ESTABLISHED 

  
      
 There is hereby established a disposal fee pursuant to Section 11-5(a) of the Solid Waste Ordinance of Seventy-

three dollars ($73.00) per ton for in-County waste and Eighty-three dollars ($83.00) per ton for out-of-County waste. 
 
      

64



31  June 16, 2014 
 

 There is hereby levied an annual solid waste collection and disposal availability fee pursuant to Section 11-5(b) of the 
Solid Waste Ordinance of Two Hundred Fifty dollars ($250) for all units on the Southern Outer Banks and One 
Hundred Fourteen dollars ($114) for all units located elsewhere within the County of Currituck. 

 

 
      SECTION 30. EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION 

  
      
 

Employee compensation is included in summary form.  Individual employee salaries are hereby approved and set as 
presented in the supporting documents presented as part of the budget deliberation process and officially filed with 
the Human Resources Director. 

 
      SECTION 31. OTHER FEES 

  
      
 

The County of Currituck charges various fees.  These fees are detailed in the master Fee schedule that is presented 
in the appendix of the budget document. 

 
      SECTION 32. DISBURSEMENT OF SCHOOL APPROPRIATIONS 

  
      
 

The amount here within appropriated as School Local Current Expense shall be disbursed to the school finance 
officer in twelve (12) equal monthly installments. 

 
      
 

The amount here within appropriated as School Capital Outlay shall be disbursed to the school finance officer 
according to a mutually agreed disbursing schedule. 

 
      
 A quarterly progress report shall be furnished by the Board of Education to the Board of Commissioners detailing the 

extent to which all school capital outlay and school capital construction monies have been expended. 
 
      SECTION 33. SPECIAL APPROPRIATIONS AND RESTRICTIONS 

  
      
 

The Budget Officer is hereby authorized to transfer appropriations within the funds as contained herein under the 
following conditions: 

 
      
 

a. 
 He may transfer amounts within the same department within the same fund up to Ten Thousand dollars 

($10,000) providing an official report on such transfers at a regular meeting of the Board of Commissioners.    
   

65



32  June 16, 2014 
 

      
 

b. 
 He may transfer amounts between departments within the same fund up to One Thousand dollars ($1,000) 

providing an official report on such transfers at a regular meeting of the Board of Commissioners.    
   
      
 

c. 
 

He may appropriate fund balance to salaries and benefits in order to increase salaries of employees who 
have met requirements to increase certifications required by the County providing an official report on such 
transfers at a regular meeting of the Board of Commissioners.    

   
      
 

d. 
 

He may make inter-fund loans for a period of not more than sixty (60) days. 

      
 

e. 
 He may not transfer any amounts between funds or from any contingency line items within any funds. 

   
      SECTION 34. CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS 

  
      
 

The County Manager and the County Attorney are hereby authorized to execute contractual documents under the 
following conditions: 

 
      
 

a. 
 

They may execute contracts for construction or repair projects which do not require formal competitive bid 
procedures. 

   
      
 

b. 
 

They may award contracts, reject bids, re-advertise for bids, waive bid bonds or bid deposit requirements, and 
waive performance and payment bond requirements for all formal bids of apparatus, supplies, materials and 
equipment as stated in G. S. 143-129. 

   
      
 

c. 
 

They may execute contracts for (1) purchases of apparatus, supplies, and materials, or equipment which are 
within the budgeted departmental appropriations; (2) leases of personal property for a duration of one year or 
less and within budgeted departmental appropriations; and (3) services which are within budgeted 
departmental appropriations. 

   
   
   
      
 

d. 
 They may execute grant agreements to and from public and non-profit organizations which are within 

budgeted appropriations, unless a grantor organization requires execution by the Board of Commissioners.    
   
      
 

e. 
 

They may execute contracts, as the lessor or lessee of real property, which are of a duration of one year or 

66



33  June 16, 2014 
 

   
less which are within the budgeted departmental appropriations. 

      SECTION 35. MEMORANDA 
  

      
 

A. 
 

Officers: 
  

   
Daniel F. Scanlon II is the Budget Officer 

  
   

Leeann Walton is the Clerk to the Board 
  

   
Eileen M. Wirth is the Deputy Clerk to the Board 

  
   

Sandra L. Hill is the Finance Director 
  

   
Bridget T. Brinkley is the Deputy Finance Director 

  
   

Tracy L. Sample is the Tax Collector 
  

   
Michelle Rose is the Deputy Tax Collector 

  
      
 

B. 
 

Facsimile Signatures: 
  

   
The use of facsimile signature machines, signature stamps, or similar devices in signing checks and drafts is 
hereby authorized; however, off-line checks and pre-audit certification requires in the minimum of one original 
authorizing signature.  The Finance Director is hereby charged with the custody of all facsimile stamps, plates 
or other devices. 

   

   
      
 

C. 
 

Official Depositories 
  

   
The official depositories of the County of Currituck are: 

  
   

   Bank of America, North Carolina 
  

   
   Branch Bank and Trust, North Carolina 

  
  

       North Carolina Cash Management Trust, Charlotte, North Carolina 
  

   
   Towne Bank of Currituck, North Carolina 

  
   

   Vantage South Bank/Yadkin State Bank, Currituck, North Carolina 
  

   
   Wells Fargo, North Carolina 

  
      
 

D. 
 

Bank for Imprest Expenditure Accounts for Health Benefits: 
  

   
   Citibank, N.A. 

  
      
 

E. 
 

Daily deposits are required by all departments when the amount of money held on had sums to Two Hundred 
Fifty dollars ($250). 

   
      
 

F. 
 

Returned Check or Electronic Funds Transfer Fees: 
  

   
The County will assess a returned check charge consistent with G.S. 25-3-512 on all checks or electronic 

67



34  June 16, 2014 
 

   
funds transfers returned to the County due to insufficient or unavailable funds, except for the payment of 
taxes.  The returned check fee will be $25.00 per item returned.  This fee will also be charged for ACH or 
credit card transactions that are not paid due to insufficient funds.    

   
      
 

G. 
 

Policy on Appropriations: 
  

   The Board of County Commissioners will not consider supplemental appropriations for any service, function, 
purpose or activity that could have been reasonably considered during the budget process.    

   
      SECTION 36. USE OF BUDGET ORDINANCE 

  
      
 

The Budget Officer and the Finance Director shall use this budget ordinance for administration of the budget and for 
the accounting system. 

 
      ADOPTED this 16th day of June 2014. 

   
 

68



 
B) PB 14-03 Currituck County - Outdoor Shooting Ranges: Request to amend 

the Unified Development Ordinance to establish Outdoor Shooting Ranges as a 
permitted use in the Resource Conservation (RC), Agricultural (AG), and Heavy 
Industrial (HI) zoning districts with use specific standards. 

 
Ben Woody, Planning and Community Development Director, presented the item and 
reviewed staff and Planning Board recommendations: 
 
 
 
On behalf of the Board of Commissioners, Currituck Planning & Community Development submits 
the following request to amend to the Unified Development Ordinance (UDO).  The proposed 
amendment establishes outdoor shooting ranges as a permitted use in the Agricultural (AG) and 
Heavy Industrial (HI) zoning districts.  Also proposed are use-specific standards and off-street 
parking standards. 
 
This proposed amendment is in response to a request for an outdoor shooting range in the 
Moyock Township.  Upon reviewing the UDO, staff determined that commercially operated 
outdoor shooting ranges are not a permitted use of land in the county.  If the Board of 
Commissioners establishes outdoor shooting ranges as a permitted use in the county, any 
proposed commercial outdoor shooting range (including expansions of legally nonconforming 
ranges) will be subject to all UDO standards and permitting procedures.  The UDO already 
includes allowances for police firing ranges, indoor shooting ranges, and security training 
facilities. 
 
Staff recognizes that outdoor shooting ranges are reasonable uses in rural areas as long as 
precautions are taken to mitigate noise impacts and ensure the safety of both range users and 
nearby residents. The operation of an outdoor shooting range will be subject to the county noise 
control ordinance, and the proposed use-specific standards establish setbacks and shooting range 
design standards.  These proposed requirements should aid in minimizing impacts to adjacent 
property owners.  The Board may also need to consider the type of permit required for an 
outdoor shooting range as a means for providing notice and public comment opportunities to 
surrounding properties. 
 
Staff recommends approval of this request provided the Board makes a finding that the 
amendment is reasonable and in the public interest, results in a logical development pattern, and 
does not result  in significantly adverse impacts to adjacent property owners. 
 
The Planning Board recommended unanimous approval at their April 8, 2014 meeting with the 
following conditions: 

• Administratively approval with a one-half mile setback from property lines. 
• Use permit for all other approvals. 
• Adjoining property owner notification will be one-half mile. 
• Shooting range shall be one-half mile from residential dwelling and residential zoning. 

 
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS DISCUSSION (5-19-14)  
Commissioner Petrey noted the Sheriff recommended nothing less than ½ mile. 
 
Commissioner Griggs questioned any distinction between private and commercial outdoor ranges.  
He had requested Mr. Woody to prepare an overlay to determine where a range could be 

69



36  June 16, 2014 
 

located. He pointed out that most permitted areas would be in wetlands and 97% of the county 
would be prohibited.  He suggested tabling the item pending further review. 
 
There was further discussion about exploding targets and permitted areas for construction as well 
as conditions for administrative approval. 
 
Commissioner Martin questioned whether existing permitted ranges would have to comply to 
which Mr. Woody responded that existing ranges could not expand. 
Chairman O’Neal opened the Public Hearing. 
 
Cathy Gray, Shawboro, stated she lived in front of Powells Farm Shooting Range and opposed the 
amendment. She also stated noise abatement was needed. 
 
Denise Holmes. Shawboro, was opposed to shooting ranges. No good would come from them. 
Property values were decreasing, it was not a reasonable use of the land and no one wants them in 
their back yard. She asked the Board to say no to outdoor shooting ranges. 
 
Brian Kingston, Shawboro, lives one mile from the range and asked how the Commissioners would 
feel if it was near their home. He urged them not to pass any more until they address what they 
have. 
 
Wende Shannon, Moyock, understood the problem but felt compromise was possible. She felt there 
would be a commercial benefit. 
 
Troy Moser, Moyock, supported outdoor shooting ranges, the need for structural environment, 
properly managed. They would be good neighbors, revenue producing. 
 
John Snowden, Maple, noted there were 494 acres in a half mile circle. This amendment would be 
a de facto ban. Notice was not excessive. If well-planned, it could attract travel and tourism. 
 
There being no further comments, Chairman O’Neal closed the Public Hearing. 
 
Commissioner Griggs moved to table the request for further review and further direction from the 
Planning Board. Commissioner Gilbert seconded the motion. 
 
Commissioner Petrey felt the need to set a date for bringing the item back for action. 
 
Commissioner McCord wanted to include establishing days and hours of operation. 
 
Commissioner Griggs amended his motion to remand back to the Planning Board and/or staff for 
clarification of the points he had raised. Commissioner Gilbert seconded the amendment.  Motion 
carried. 
 
PLANNING BOARD DISCUSSION (4-8-14) 
Mr. Clark opened up PB 14-03 for discussion. 
 
Mr. Wright said no part of a shooting range shall be located within one-half mile of an existing 
waterfowl impoundment or any existing Currituck Game Commission sanctioned rest area. Mr. 
Wright said the sanctioned rest areas are not permanent and often move.   
Mr. Clark said if there is a sanction rest area and a shooting range is one-half mile away from it, 
the Game Commission cannot change it to where the shooting range would be illegal. 
 

70



37  June 16, 2014 
 

Mr. Cartwright asked if the shooting range would be grandfather in. 
 
Mr. Woody said it would be a nonconforming use. 
 
Mr. Craddock said that currently the Unified Development Ordinance (UDO) states that adjoining 
property owners notifications are mailed to owners within 200 ft of the property. Mr. Craddock 
would like to recommend one-quarter of mile or one-half of mile for adjoining property owners to 
be notified of a proposed shooting range.  
 
Ms. Overstreet asked if a shooting range is located within 200 ft of any property line, but less 
than one-half mile from an existing residential dwelling; and you have a piece of property that is 
zoned residential, but a house is not there now, should the board include residential zoned 
property? 
 
Mr. Woody said the board can specify zoning. 
 
PLANNING BOARD DISCUSSION (4-8-14) 
Mr. Clark opened up PB 14-03 for discussion. 
 
Mr. Wright said no part of a shooting range shall be located within one-half mile of an existing 
waterfowl impoundment or any existing Currituck Game Commission sanctioned rest area. Mr. 
Wright said the sanctioned rest areas are not permanent and often move.   
 
Mr. Clark said if there is a sanction rest area and a shooting range is one-half mile away from it, 
the Game Commission cannot change it to where the shooting range would be illegal. 
 
Mr. Cartwright asked if the shooting range would be grandfather in. 
 
Mr. Woody said it would be a nonconforming use. 
 
Mr. Craddock said that currently the Unified Development Ordinance (UDO) states that adjoining 
property owners notifications are mailed to owners within 200 ft of the property. Mr. Craddock 
would like to recommend one-quarter of mile or one-half of mile for adjoining property owners to 
be notified of a proposed shooting range.  
 
Ms. Overstreet asked if a shooting range is located within 200 ft of any property line, but less 
than one-half mile from an existing residential dwelling; and you have a piece of property that is 
zoned residential, but a house is not there now, should the board include residential zoned 
property? 
 
Mr. Woody said the board can specify zoning. 
 
Mr. Woody said you could have a zoning permit which is staff approved, conditional zoning 
process which would go to the Planning Board and Board of Commissioners for approval, or a use 
permit which would go to the Planning Board and Board of Commissioners for approval.  If it is 
staff approved there would be no public hearing or public notifications, but with a conditional 
zoning or use permit you would have a public hearing. 
 
Mr. Cartwright said if you have a large parcel of land which meets all the criteria then it should 
be administratively approved. If the shooting range is located one mile from any residential 
dwelling or residential zoning district it could be administratively approved subject to these 
standards.  

71



38  June 16, 2014 
 

 
The Planning Board discussed quasi-judicial vs. legislative, conditional zoning vs. use permit, 
berms, landscaping, property lines, distance, types of weapons, safety issues, noise levels, and 
distance for adjoining property notification.    
 
Mr. Craddock asked if a future applicant for a shooting range requested the property to be 
rezoned through a conditional zoning request and the use stopped, would the property revert 
back to the zoning before the request. 
 
Mr. Woody said no.  
 
Mr. Craddock provided examples of different sizes and caliber of bullets. 
 
Ms. Overstreet asked for clarification on the parking standards for outdoor shooting range of 1.5 
per range. 
 
Mr. Woody said staff will change it to 1.5 per station. 
 
Mr. Craddock asked what advantage to a property owner if it is a use permit vs. a conditional 
zoning request.  
 
Mr. Woody said if he was a property owner he would prefer it to be a use permit.  If you were 
an adjoining property owner a conditional zoning is preferable because you can oppose the 
application.  
 
Mr. Woody said the use permit is quasi-judicial and the conditional zoning is legislative.  
 
PLANNING BOARD ACTION 
Mr. Cartwright moved to approve PB 14-03 due to its consistency with the 2006 Land Use Plan 
and that the request is reasonable and in the public interest and promotes orderly growth and 
development with the following conditions: 

• Administratively approval with a one-half mile setback from property lines. 
• Use permit for all other approvals. 
• Adjoining property owner notification will be one-half mile. 
• Shooting range shall be one-half mile from residential dwelling and residential zoning. 
• No shooting range shall be located within one-half mile of an existing waterfowl 

impoundment (flooded area) or any existing Currituck Game Commission sanctioned rest 
area. 

Mr. Craddock seconded the motion and motion carried unanimously. 
 
Outdoor Shooting Range 

UDO AMENDMENT REQUEST 
 
Amendment to the Unified Development Ordinance Chapter 4: Use Standards, Chapter 5: 
Development Standards, and Chapter 10: Definitions and Measurement, to establish Outdoor 
Shooting Ranges as a permitted use with use specific standards.  
 
BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of Commissioners of the County of Currituck, North Carolina that 
the Unified Development Ordinance of the County of Currituck be amended as follows: 
 
 

72



39  June 16, 2014 
 

Item 1: That Section 4.1.2 Use Table is amended by adding the following underlined language 
and deleting the strikethrough language: 
 
 
 
 

TABLE 4.1.1: SUMMARY USE TABLE 
Z = Zoning Compliance Permit;      U = Use Permit;      MP = Allowed with Master Plan; 

CZ = Allowed in a Conditional Zoning District      blank cell = Prohibited 

USE 

CATEGORY 
USE TYPE 

ZONING DISTRICT  
[NOTE: OVERLAY OR SUB-DISTRICT REQUIREMENTS MAY FURTHER LIMIT USES] 

L RE
Q   

RC
  

AG
  

SF
M

  

SF
O

  

SF
R 

 

SF
I 

M
XR

  

G
B 

 

LB
  

CC
 

VC
 

LI
  

H
I  

PD
-R

 

PD
-M

 

PD
-O

 

 

COMMERCIAL USE CLASSIFICATION 

Re
cr

ea
tio

n 
/ 

En
te

rt
ai

nm
en

t, 
O

ut
do

or
 

Automotive Racing             U     

Arena, amphitheater, or 
stadium 

       U  U U   
M
P 

M
P 

M
P 

4.F.
1 

Athletic facility   Z Z  Z Z Z Z Z Z   
M
P 

M
P 

M
P 

4.F.
2 

Golf course   U U   U       
M
P 

M
P 

M
P 

 

Golf driving range       Z Z Z     
M
P 

M
P 

  

Marinas       U Z  Z Z Z  
M
P 

M
P 

M
P 

4.F.
3 

Outdoor shooting range  Z/U           Z/U    
4.F.
5 

Outdoor tour operator        U U Z Z    
M
P 

M
P 

4.F.
56 

Recreation, outdoor       U Z Z Z Z   
M
P 

M
P 

M
P 

4.F.
4 

INSTITUTIONAL USE CLASSIFICATION 

Pu
bl

ic
 

Sa
fe

ty
 Correctional facility            U U     

Police, fire, or EMS facility  
U 
Z 

U 
Z 

U 
Z 

U 
Z 

U 
Z 

U 
Z 

Z Z Z Z Z Z 
M
P 

M
P 

M
P 

 

Security training facility  U               3.F 

  
 
Item 2: That Section 4.2.4.F Recreation/Entertainment, Outdoor is amended by adding the 
following underlined language and renumbering accordingly: 

 

 

Outdoor Shooting Range 
Outdoor shooting ranges shall comply with all applicable standards in the 
county Code of Ordinances and the following standards: 

73



40  June 16, 2014 
 

((aa))  Outdoor shooting ranges located less than one-half mile from an 
existing property line are subject to an approved use permit (see 
Section 2.4.6).  Required mailed notice of any public hearing shall 
be provided to the owners of land within one-half mile of the 
property lines of land subject to the use permit application and 
shall comply with subsection 2.3.6.B Public Notification. 

((bb))  Outdoor shooting ranges shall be located on a site or parcel with 
an area of at least ten acres. 

((cc))  No part of a shooting range shall be located within 200 feet of any 
property line and less than one-half mile from an existing 
residential zoning district, residential dwelling, school, waterfowl 
impoundment (flooded area), or Currituck Game Commission 
sanctioned waterfowl rest area. 

((dd))  Shooting range facilities shall be designed, constructed and 
maintained as specified by the most current edition of the National 
Rifle Association of America (NRA) Range Source Book, including 
but not limited to the following protective barriers: 

Backstops with a minimum height of 20 feet; 

Side berms or walls with a minimum height of eight feet; and 

Firing line covers or overhead safety baffles. 
 

((ee))  Shooting range facilities shall be designed to contain all bullets, 
shot, or other debris on the range facility and must implement 
best management practices for lead management as specified by 
the Environmental Protection Agency’s (EPA’s) most current edition 
of Best Management Practices for Lead at Outdoor Shooting 
Ranges. 

((ff))  Weapon types are restricted to pistol, rifle, or shotgun.  The use of 
explosives is prohibited.  

((gg))  Hours of operation shall be no earlier than sunrise to no later than 
sunset, except that shooting shall not commence before 12:30 
P.M. on Sundays. 

((hh))  The operators of an outdoor shooting range shall provide proof of 
accident and liability insurance coverage.  A minimum coverage of 
$500,000 shall be established and maintained.   

((ii))  A registered engineer shall certify that the design, specifications, 
and plans for range construction are in compliance with the 
standards in this subsection. 

74



41  June 16, 2014 
 

 
 
Item 3: That Section 5.1.3 Off-Street Parking Standards is amended by adding the following 
underlined language: 
 

TABLE 5.1.3.C:  MINIMUM OFF-STREET PARKING STANDARDS 

USE CATEGORY USE TYPE 
MINIMUM NUMBER 

OF PARKING SPACES 
COMMERCIAL USE CLASSIFICATION 

Recreation / 
Entertainment, 
Outdoor 

Marinas 1 per slip or mooring 
Outdoor shooting range 1.5 per firing station 

Outdoor tour operator 

1 per every 2 
employees + 1 per 
every 5 persons of 
total tour vehicle 
capacity 

Recreation, outdoor See Section 5.1.3.E 
 
 
Item 4: That Subsection 10.4.5: Commercial Use Classification is amended by adding the 
following underlined language: 

HH..  Recreation/Entertainment, Outdoor 

((11))  Characteristics 

The Outdoor Recreation/Entertainment Use Category includes use types 
that are large, generally commercial, and provide continuous recreation 
or entertainment-oriented activities that primarily take place outdoors.  
They may take place in a number of structures that are arranged together 
in an outdoor setting.  Accessory uses may include concessions, parking, 
and maintenance facilities. 

Examples 
Example use types include privately-owned arenas, amphitheaters, or 
stadiums, outdoor commercial recreation uses (including private golf 
driving ranges and privately-owned miniature golf facilities; go-cart 
racing, race-track, or dirt-track facilities; drive-in movie theaters; 
privately-owned outdoor commercial tourist attractions, water parks, and 
amusement parks; and privately-owned active sports facilities such as 
ball fields, courts, shooting ranges, and archery ranges), athletic facilities, 
and private golf courses, and outdoor swimming pools (private). 

Exceptions 

75



42  June 16, 2014 
 

((aa))  Publicly owned golf courses, tennis courts, swimming pools, 
basketball courts, ball fields, and other similar outdoor 
recreational or entertainment-oriented facilities are classified as 
Parks and Open Space. 

((bb))  Police firing ranges are classified as Public Safety Facilities. 
 
 
Item 5: That Section 10.5: Definitions is amended by adding the following underlined language 
and reordering alphabetically: 
 
OUTDOOR SHOOTING RANGE 
The commercial use of land for the discharging of firearms for the purposes of target 
practice, skeet and trap shooting, temporary shooting competitions, or instructional 
classes.  This does not include private ranges intended for personal non-commercial 
use or infrequent special events subject to a temporary use permit (see Section 2.4.11). 
 
 
Item 6: The provisions of this Ordinance are severable and if any of its provisions or any 
sentence, clause, or paragraph or the application thereof to any person or circumstance shall be 
held unconstitutional or violative of the Laws of the State of North Carolina by any court of 
competent jurisdiction, the decision of such court shall not affect or impair any of the remaining 
provisions which can be given effect without the invalid provision or application. 
 
Commisioner Aydlett spoke about establishment of an annual evaluation procedure and Vice-
Chairman Martin suggested that Sunday be designated a day of quiet.  Commissioner Gilbert 
suggested operating hours of 8 am till 6 pm, with extended hours of 8 am till 7 pm from 
Memorial Day through Labor Day, and no Sunday hours.  Commissioner Griggs asked for 
clarification that the ordinance does not include ranges on private property.  County Attorney 
Ike McRee confirmed the ordinance regulates only commercial ranges.  
 
Chairman O’Neal opened the Public Hearing. 
 
Dexter Green, Moyock, stated he is a firearms instructor at Troy Moser’s gun shop in Moyock.  
He stated that the NRA criteria the County used as a model for the ordinance is also used by 
Army, Navy, and other military branches.  He would like to get youth involved and wants to 
bring people together to learn to use firearms safely. 
 
Christopher Mead, Moyock, supports opening of shooting ranges, and has been a part of the 
Currituck Shooting Club for two years.  He said there needs to be a safe and lawful place to 
shoot and a range would bring people into the county.  He also feels a facility is needed to 
teach youth about gun safety. 
Josh Moser, Moyock, said he has always been taught to use guns safely and the range 
would be beneficial to everyone. 
 
Troy Moser, Moyock, said he has spoken to hundreds of businesses with positive feedback, 
and stated that it is about giving people the opportunity.  Regarding noise concerns, Mr. 
Moser said that no business wants to be considered a nuisance, and wants to provide a safe 

76



43  June 16, 2014 
 

place for people to go.  To date, he has had no complaints about violations of the noise 
ordinance.  He wants to be a good manager of the business and a good neighbor.  He said 
the most dangerous people are those who buy guns and don’t know how to use them. 
 
Eddie Jo Powell, Shawboro, owner of Powell’s Sporting Clays, stated they have been in 
business since 1987, are permitted, legal, and operating within their legal permit. 
 
There being no further comments, Chairman O’Neal closed the Public Hearing. 
 
Commissioner Gilbert moved to approve, with amendments.  Motion failed, no second. 
 
Commissioner Petrey moved to approve as presented by staff with the following revisions, 
due to its consistency with the Land Use Plan and that the request is reasonable and in the 
public interest, results in a logical development pattern, and does not result in significantly 
adverse impacts to adjacent property owners. 
 

• Hours of operation limited to Monday – Saturday, from 9:00am to one-half hour prior to 
sunset. 

• Required mail notice is extended to owners of land within one-half mile of the subject 
parcel. 

• The one-half mile setback is expanded to include waterfowl impoundment/rest areas. 
• Exclude private outdoor ranges intended for personal non-commercial use and 

infrequent special events. 
• Prohibit explosives or any target that detonates. 
• Require a permitted range to be evaluated annually to review the number of noise 

complaints received.  If the county receives an excessive number of complaints, the 
range would need to integrate sound abatement strategies or discontinue operation. 

 
Commissioner Martin seconded the motion.  Motion carried. 

 
Old Business 
 

A) An Ordinance of the Currituck County Board of Commissioners Amending 
Section 10-64 of Chapter 10 of the Currituck County Code of Ordinances to 
Authorize Law Enforcement Seizure of ATV Permits that are Expired, Revoked, 
Cancelled, Suspended, Unlawfully or Erroneously Issued or Unlawfully Used. 
 

County Attorney, Ike McRee, recommended consideration of an amendment to allow seizure of 
ATV permits by law enforcement under certain circumstances. 
 
Commissioner Aydlett moved to approve.  Commissioner Gilbert seconded.  Motion carried. 
 

B) An Ordinance of the Currituck County Board of Commissioners Defining and 
Regulating Peddlers and Solicitors in Currituck County. 
 

County Attorney, Ike McRee, reviewed the ordinance, establishing a permitting process with an  
application process, background checks, restricted operations, and agricultural considerations.  
Commissioner Gilbert moved to approve.  Commissioner McCord seconded.  Motion carried 

77



44  June 16, 2014 
 

unanimously. 
 
New Business 
 

A) Board Appointments: 
1. Appointments to Game Commission 

 
Commissioner Aydlett nominated Steven Lewark to a two-year term, expiring June, 2016. 
Commissioner Griggs nominated for reappointment Jeremy Midgette for a second term, expiring 
June, 2016. 
Commissioner Petrey nominated for reappointment Andy Newbern for a second term, expiring 
June, 2016. 
 
All nominations were approved. 
    

B) Consent Agenda: 
1. Approval of June 2, 2014, minutes. 
2. Budget Amendments 
3. Approval of ABC Board Lease for Corolla Store Space. 
4. Authorize County Manager to execute Dominion Power agreement to provide 

service to Corolla Public Access facility located on Corolla Village Road. 
5. Consideration and Action-Purchasing Requests for Moyock Fire 

Department. 
 
Commissioner Gilbert moved to approve the Consent Agenda.  Commissioner Petrey seconded 
the motion.  Motion carried unanimously.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

    

 
 
 

Debit 
 

Credit 

        

     

Decrease Revenue 
or 

 

Increase Revenue 
or 

Account Number 
 

Account Description 
 

Increase Expense 
 

Decrease 
Expense 

        12546 511006 
 

Telephone & Postage 
   

 $                  2,400  
12546 513006 

 
Utilities 

 
 $                   2,000  

  
78



45  June 16, 2014 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

     
Debit 

 
Credit 

        

     

Decrease Revenue 
or 

 

Increase Revenue 
or 

Account Number 
 

Account Description 
 

Increase Expense 
 

Decrease 
Expense 

        52662 545001 
 

Reconstruction 
   

 $                  9,828  
52662 545000 

 
Clearance 

 
 $                   9,828  

  
        
     

 $                   9,828  
 

 $                  9,828  

        Explanation: CDBG (52662) - Transfer funds within the 2011 CDBG Scattered Site Program. 

Net Budget Effect: Multi-year Grant (52) - No change. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

     
Debit 

 
Credit 

        

     

Decrease Revenue 
or 

 

Increase Revenue 
or 

Account Number 
 

Account Description 
 

Increase Expense 
 

Decrease 
Expense 

        10310 400100 
 

Vehicle Tax Collected by DMV 
  

 $              605,000  
10320 411004 

 
Medicaid Hold Harmless 

   
 $              140,000  

10330 420000 
 

Beer & Wine Taxes 
   

 $                  1,700  
10340 454000 

 
Building Permits 

   
 $                25,000  

10390 499900 
 

Fund Balance 
Appropriated 

 
 $               622,382  

  

12546 514506 
 

Travel/Training/Education 
   

 $                  1,500  
12546 532006 

 
Supplies 

   
 $                  1,142  

12546 532106 
 

Fire Supplies 
   

 $                  1,000  
12546 536006 

 
Uniforms 

   
 $                  1,500  

12546 536106 
 

PPE 
   

 $                  3,500  
12546 544006 

 
Volunteer Assistance 

 
 $                   6,000  

  12546 561006 
 

Professional Services 
 

 $                   2,000  
  12546 590006 

 
Capital Outlay 

 
 $                   1,042  

  
        
     

 $                 11,042  
 

 $                11,042  

        Explanation: Corolla Volunteer Fire & Rescue (12546) - Transfers requested per email from 
Corolla VFD.  Capital Outlay is for wireless headsets. 

  Net Budget Effect: Fire Services Fund (12) - No change. 

79



46  June 16, 2014 
 

10410 506001 
 

Unemployment Insurance 
 

 $                      100  
  10410 532000 

 
Supplies 

   
 $                     100  

10415 506000 
 

Insurance Expense 
 

 $                   1,660  
  10415 561000 

 
Professional Services 

   
 $                  1,660  

10430 506000 
 

Insurance Expense 
 

 $                        80  
  10430 506001 

 
Unemployment Insurance 

 
 $                      100  

  10430 511000 
 

Telephone & Postage 
   

 $                     180  
10440 506000 

 
Insurance Expense 

 
 $                      166  

  10440 506001 
 

Unemployment Insurance 
 

 $                        50  
  10440 514500 

 
Training & Education 

 
 $                      727  

  10440 514000 
 

Travel 
   

 $                     727  
10440 535000 

 
Safekeeping Fees 

   
 $                     216  

10441 506000 
 

Insurance Expense 
 

 $                      198  
  10441 514500 

 
Training & Education 

   
 $                  1,864  

10441 516000 
 

Repairs & Maintenance 
 

 $                        24  
  10441 557100 

 
Software License Fees 

 
 $                   1,642  

  10450 545450 
 

Motor Vehicle Tax Fees 
 

 $                 42,000  
  10480 506000 

 
Insurance Expense 

 
 $                      198  

  10480 557300 
 

Excise Tax on Deeds 
 

 $                 61,324  
  10480 557301 

 
Floodplain Mapping Fees 

   
 $                16,000  

10480 557303 
 

Archives & Records Mgmt 
Fee 

  
 $                  8,000  

10480 557400 
 

Children's Trust Fund 
 

 $                      300  
  10480 558100 

 
Domestic Violence Center 

 
 $                   2,000  

  10510 502200 
 

Holiday Pay 
 

 $                 12,533  
  10510 506001 

 
Unemployment Insurance Exp  $                      700  

  10510 531000 
 

Gas  
 

 $                 30,000  
  10512 506000 

 
Insurance Expense 

 
 $                      159  

  10530 514000 
 

Travel 
 

 $                      300  
  10530 561200 

 
Billing Fees 

 
 $                 18,000  

  10550 506001 
 

Unemployment Insurance Exp  $                      100  
  10550 507000 

 
Retirement Expense 

   
 $                  6,000  

10550 511010 
 

Data Transmission 
 

 $                      300  
  10550 531000 

 
Gas  

 
 $                   1,000  

  
10550 535000 

 

Credit Card Maintenance 
Fees  $                   1,200  

  10550 545000 
 

Contract Services 
 

 $                   3,000  
  10606 506000 

 
Insurance Expense 

 
 $                        80  

  10640 502100 
 

Salaries - Overtime 
 

 $                   1,000  
  10640 545000 

 
Contract Services 

 
 $                   2,509  

  10660 506000 
 

Insurance Expense 
 

 $                      395  
  10660 514800 

 
Fees Paid to Officials 

   
 $                     395  

10740 545500 
 

Mental Health Center 
 

 $                   2,000  
  10750 506000 

 
Insurance Expense 

 
 $                      415  

  10750 5060001 
 

Unemployment Insurance Exp  $                      200  
  10790 532000 

 
Supplies 

 
 $                      200  

  10790 514800 
 

Fees Paid to Officials 
   

 $                     200  
10795 506000 

 
Insurance Expense 

 
 $                      277  

  10795 514800 
 

Fees Paid to Officials 
   

 $                     277  
10795 590000 

 
Capital Outlay 

 
 $                   7,000  

  10795 576009 
 

Youth Soccer 
   

 $                  7,000  

        
     

 $               814,319  
 

 $              814,319  

        
80



47  June 16, 2014 
 

Explanation: Various Departments - Operating transfers and increases to reflect offsetting 
revenues for the current fiscal year. 

  Net Budget Effect: Operating Fund (10) - Increased by $149,318. 
 
 
 
 

     
Debit 

 
Credit 

        

     

Decrease Revenue 
or 

 

Increase Revenue 
or 

Account Number 
 

Account Description 
 

Increase Expense 
 

Decrease 
Expense 

        12543 514503 
 

Travel/Training 
   

 $                11,619  
12543 516103 

 
Building & Grounds 

   
 $                  5,500  

12543 532103 
 

Fire Supplies 
 

 $                 46,940  
  12543 536103 

 
PPE 

   
 $                14,000  

12543 545000 
 

Contract Services 
   

 $                11,821  
12543 561003 

 
Professional Services 

   
 $                  4,000  

        
     

 $                 46,940  
 

 $                46,940  

        Explanation: Moyock Volunteer Fire Department (12543) - Transfer funds per request from 
MoyockVFD. 

  Net Budget Effect: Fire Services Fund (12) - No change. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

    
Debit 

 
Credit 

        

     

Decrease Revenue 
or 

 

Increase Revenue 
or 

Account Number 
 

Account Description 
 

Increase Expense 
 

Decrease 
Expense 

        67390 495065 
 

T F - Moyock Commons 
   

 $              230,000  
67360 471000 

 
Tap and Connection Fees 

 
 $               222,392  

  67360 470000 
 

Utility Charges 
 

 $                   5,000  
  67878 516000 

 
Repairs & Maintenance 

 
 $                      365  

  67878 557100 
 

Software License Fee 
   

 $                       36  

81



48  June 16, 2014 
 

67878 545100 
 

Credit Card Fees 
   

 $                       75  
67878 533800 

 
Chemicals 

   
 $                     100  

67878 533200 
 

Lab Tests 
   

 $                     154  
67878 588000 

 
Contingency 

 
 $                   2,608  

  
        

65390 499900 
 

Fund Balance 
Appropriated 

 
 $               230,000  

  
65858 587067 

 

T T - Moyock Central 
Sewer 

   
 $              230,000  

        
     

 $               460,365  
 

 $              460,365  

        Explanation: Moyock Central Sewer (67878); Moyock Commons Sewer (65858) - Intra-fund 
operating loan from Moyock Commons Sewer to Moyock Central Sewer. 

  Net Budget Effect: Moyock Central Sewer (67) - Increased by $2,608. 

   
Moyock Commons Sewer (65) - Increased by $230,000. 

 
C) Commissioner’s Report 

 
Commissioner Griggs stated he and other Commissioners attended the high school graduation 
and wished the best to the Class of 2014.   
 
Commissioner Martin extended his best wishes to the Class of 2014.  
 
Commissioner Aydlett reported on a recent meeting between Congressman Walter Jones and 
Commissioners.  They discussed county issues including wetlands, roads in the four-wheel 
drive area, the dock at Coinjock (Veterans) Park, and channel dredging at Heritage Park.  
Commissioner Aydlett stated Congressman Jones is going to try to help move things along with 
regard to these issues. 
 
Commissioner Petrey reminded everyone it is tourist season and to please be careful on the 
roads. 
 
Commissioner Gilbert reminded everyone of the July 4th events at Heritage Park, Corolla, and 
wished everyone a safe and enjoyable July 4th. 

 
 

D) County Manager’s Report 
 
Dan Scanlon updated Commissioners with regard to the removal of unattended items from the 
beaches.  He stated there had been a meeting with the three major beach rental companies and 
the contractor responsible for removal and tagging of items.  The rental companies and 
contractor will have a separate agreement that will enable rental company property to be 
retrieved after removal. 
 
Commissioner Aydlett moved to recess the regular meeting and reconvene as the Tourism 
Development Authority.  Commissioner Gilbert seconded the motion.  Motion carried 
unanimously. 

82



49  June 16, 2014 
 

 
Special Meeting 
 
Tourism Development Authority 
 

A) Public Hearing and Possible Action on the Fiscal Year 2015 Tourism 
Development Authority Budget. 

 
Chairman O’Neal opened the Public Hearing.  
There being no comments, he closed the Public Hearing. 
 
Commissioner Gilbert moved to approve the Tourism Development Authority budget.  
Commissioner Petrey seconded.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
 
  

83



 
CURRITUCK COUNTY TOURISM DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 

       BUDGET ORDINANCE 
        For the Year Ending June 30, 2015 
        

            
BE IT ORDAINED by the Currituck County Tourism Development Authority, County of Currituck, North Carolina that the following estimated 
resources, appropriations, and memoranda are adopted for the fiscal year commencing July 1, 2013 and ending June 30, 2014. 

            SECTION 1.  OCCUPANCY TAX - PROMOTION 
        

            
 

A. Estimated Resources: 
        

   
Occupancy Tax 

  

     
10,028,839  

     

   
Other revenues 

  

           
95,040  

     

   
Transfers from other funds 

  

           
86,537  

     

   
Appropriated Fund Balance 

 
  

         
345,304  

     

     
  

     
10,555,720  

     
            

   
   TOTAL ESTIMATED RESOURCES 

 
$ 

     
10,555,720  

     
            
 

B. Appropriations: 
        

   
Occupancy Tax - Promotion 

 
$ 

      
3,449,552  

     
            

   
Whalehead Preservation Trust Operations 

  

         
550,000  

     

   
Whalehead Preservation Trust Capital 

  

         
250,000  

     

   
Other Tourism Related  

  

      
6,306,168  

     
     

       
     

84



51  June 16, 2014 
 

10,555,720  

            

   
   TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS 

 
$ 

     
10,555,720  

     
            
   

The information above is presented in summary form.  Complete detailed information is on file with the Finance Director. 

            
            
            SECTION 2.  SPECIAL APPROPRIATIONS AND RESTRICTIONS 

      
            

 
The Budget Officer is hereby authorized to transfer appropriations within the funds as contained herein under the following conditions. 

            
 

a. 
 

He may transfer amounts within the same department within the same fund up to Ten Thousand dollars ($10,000) providing an official 
report on such transfers at a regular meeting of the Board of Commissioners on a quarterly basis. 

   
            
 

b. 
 

He may transfer amounts between departments within the same fund up to One Thousand dollars ($1,000) providing an official report on 
such transfers at the next regular meeting of the Board of Commissioners. 

   
   

         

 
c. 

 
He may appropriate fund balance to salaries and benefits in order to increase salaries of employees who have met requirements to 
increase certifications required by the County providing an office report on such transfers at the next regular meeting of the Board of 
Commissioners. 

   
            
 

d. 
 

He may make interfund loans for a period of not more than sixty days (60). 

   
 

e. 
 

He may not transfer any amounts between funds or from any contingency line items within any funds. 

   SECTION 29.  CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS 
        

            

 
The County Manager or the County Attorney are hereby authorized to execute contractual documents under the following conditions: 

            
 

a. 
 

They may execute contracts for construction or repair projects which do not require formal competitive bid procedures. 

   
 

b. 
 

They may award contracts, reject bids, re-advertise for bids, waive bid bonds or bid deposit requirements, and waive performance and 

85



52  June 16, 2014 
 

   

payment bond requirements for all formal bids of apparatus, supplies, materials and equipment as stated in G. S. 143-129. 

            
 

c. 
 

They may execute contracts for (1) purchases of apparatus, supplies, and materials, or equipment which are within the budgeted 
departmental appropriations; (2) leases of personal property for a duration of one year or less and within budgeted departmental 
appropriations; and (3) services which are within budgeted departmental appropriations. 

   
            
 

d. 
 

They may execute grant agreements to and from public and nonprofit organizations which are within budgeted appropriations, unless a 
grantor organization requires execution by the Board of Commissioners. 

   
            
 

e. 
 

They may execute contracts, as the lessor or lessee of real property, which are of a duration of one year or less which are within the 
budgeted departmental appropriations. 

   
            SECTION 30.  MEMORANDA 

        
            
 

A. 
 

Officers: 
        

   
Daniel F. Scanlon II is the Budget Officer 

        
   

Leeann Walton is the Clerk to the Board 
        

   
Eileen Wirth is the Deputy Clerk to the Board 

       
   

Donald Ikerd McRee is the County Attorney 
       

   
Sandra L. Hill is the County Finance Director 

       
   

Bridget T. Brinkley is the Deputy Finance Director 
     

            
 

B. 
 

Facsimile Signatures: 
        

   
The use of facsimile signature machines, signature stamps, or similar devices in signing checks and drafts is hereby authorized; 
however, off-line checks and pre-audit certification requires in the minimum of one original authorizing signature.  The Finance Director is 
hereby charged with the custody of all facsimile machines, stamps, plates or other devices. 

   
   
            
 

C. 
 

Official Depositories: 
        

   
The Official depositories of the Tourism Development Authority are: 

    
   

   Towne Bank of Currituck, Moyock, North Carolina 
     

   
   Bank of America, North Carolina 

        
   

   Bank of Hampton Roads (dba Gateway Bank), North Carolina 
     

   
   Branch Bank and Trust, North Carolina 

        
   

   North Carolina Cash Management Trust, Charlotte, North Carolina 
    

86



53  June 16, 2014 
 

   
   Vantage South Bank/Yadkin State Bank, North Carolina 

     
   

   Wells Fargo, North Carolina 
        

   
    

        
 

D. 
 

Daily Deposits: 
        

   
Daily deposits are required by all departments when the amount of money held on hand sums to Two Hundred Fifty dollars ($250). 

   
            
 

E. 
 

Returned Check or Electronic Funds Transfer Fees: 
     

   
The Tourism Development Authority will assess a returned check charge consistent with G. S. 25-3-512 on all checks or electronic funds 
transfers returned to the County due to insufficient or unavailable funds, except for the payment of taxes. The returned check fee will be 
$25.00 per item returned.  This fee will also be charged for ACH or credit card transactions that are not paid due to insufficient funds.  
The penalty for returned checks and electronic funds transfers for payment of taxes are governed by G. S. 105-357(2). 

   

   
            
 

F. 
 

Policy on Appropriations: 
        

   
The Tourism Development Authority will not consider supplemental appropriations for any service, function, purpose or activity that could 
have been reasonably considered during the budget process. 

   
            SECTION 31.  USE OF BUDGET ORDINANCE 

        
            

 

The Budget Officer and the Finance Director shall use this budget ordinance for administration of the budget and for the accounting system. 

            ADOPTED this 16th day of June 2014. 
         

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

87



54  June 16, 2014 
 

 
 

B) Discussion of Travel and Tourism Department's Support of Funds 
Program Procedures. 

 
County Manager, Dan Scanlon, explained the proposed changes to the Event 
Marketing Assistance program, which provides funding for Currituck County 
businesses and non-profits to aid in their marketing efforts for special events.  
Procedures were revised to develop better reporting, transparency and 
accountability. 
 
Commissioner Gilbert moved to approve.  Commissioner Aydlett seconded.  
Motion carried. 
 
Commissioner Aydlett moved to adjourn the Tourism Development Authority meeting and 
reconvene the regular meeting and go into Closed Session.  Commissioner Martin seconded 
the motion.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
Closed Session 
Closed Session pursuant to G.S.  143-318.11(a)(3) to consult with the County Attorney in 
order to preserve attorney-client confidentiality in the matter entitled Swan Beach Corolla, 
LLC v. Currituck County, and other legal matters. 
 
 

Adjourn 

After reconvening the regular meeting, no action was taken.  There being no further business, 
Commissioner Gilbert moved to adjourn.  Commissioner Aydlett seconded the motion.  The 
meeting was adjourned. 

 

88



 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Currituck County 
Agenda Item Summary Sheet

Agenda Item Title 
 
May 2014 CDBG Monthly Progress Report 
 
 
Brief Description of Agenda Item 
 
Progress report for May’s activities regarding the Community Development Block Grant (CDBG). 
 

 
Board Action Requested 
 
Action 
 
 
Person Submitting Agenda Item 
 
 
Tammy Glave 
 
 
Presenter of Agenda Item 
 
 
Ben Woody 
 

89



 

 

Memorandum 

TO:  Board of Commissioners 
 
FROM:  Ben Woody, AICP 
  Planning Director 
 
DATE:  June 12, 2014 
 
SUBJECT: May 2014 CDBG #11-C-2308 Scattered Site Housing Project Update 
 

The 2011 Community Development Block Grant remained on schedule for the month of May.  A 
summary of May’s progress follows: 

• Completed the CDBG Monthly Report and forwarded to the Division of Community 

Assistance.  

• Received an engineering report from G.E.T., Inc. regarding the evaluation of sub-surface 

soils at 4322 Caratoke Highway, Case #4. 

• Produced a budget revision for the Scattered Site Housing Project which was accepted by 

DCA. 

• Produced the Certification of Debarment form and back up information and sent to DCA. 

• Processed a partial payment to MEG Investments for a manufactured home which was 

delivered for Case #1, M. McLane, 729 Bayview Road. 

• Performed a footing inspection for Case #1. 

• Followed up on status of well, septic, and reconstruction contracts.  

• Requested temporary relocation payment for reconstruction Case #4. 

• Requested temporary storage facility payments for Case #1 and Case #4. 

• Continued on going general administration and financial management responsibilities. 

 

Attached is the May Monthly Status Report for your review.  Thank you. 

COUNTY OF CURRITUCK 
Planning and Community Development 

Department 
Planning and Zoning Division 

153 Courthouse Road, Suite 110 
Currituck, North Carolina27929 

Telephone (252) 232-3055 / Fax (252) 
232-3026 

 

90



 

91



 
 
 
 
 
 

 

CENTENNIAL PROCLAMATION FOR 
NORTH CAROLINA COOPERATIVE EXTENSION 

 
 
 WHEREAS, May 8, 2014 marked the Centennial of the signing of the Smith-Lever Act which 
established Cooperative Extension, the nationwide transformational education system operating 
through land grant universities in partnership with federal, state and local governments; and 
 
 WHEREAS, U. S. Senator Hoke Smith of Georgia and U.S. Representative A.F. Lever of South 
Carolina authored the Smith-Lever Act to expand the “vocational, agricultural and home demonstration 
programs in rural America” by bringing the research-based knowledge of the land-grant universities to 
the people where they live and work; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the North Carolina Cooperative Extension in Currituck County is a critical component 
of the three part land-grant university mission and works collaboratively with research and academic 
programs associated with the North Carolina State University and North Carolina A&T State University to 
reach traditional and underserved audiences in all communities across North Carolina; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Cooperative Extension System continues to receive federal programmatic 
leadership and support enabled by the Smith Lever Act and other legislation through the U.S. 
Department of Agriculture’s National Institute of Food and Agriculture; and 

WHEREAS, the Smith-lever Act requires a partnership between county, state and federal 
governments and encourages priorities be established locally to meet the needs of each county; and 

 WHEREAS, North Carolina Cooperative Extension education disseminated through Currituck 
County for agriculture producers has helped establish North Carolina as a leading agriculture producing 
state;    4-H youth development has reached millions of youth and helped prepare them for responsible 
adulthood by equipping them with citizenship and leadership skills; family and consumer sciences has 
prepared people for healthy, productive lives and breaking the cycle of poverty; and 
 
 WHEREAS, North Carolina Cooperative Extension in Currituck County engages with rural and 
urban learners through practical, community-based and online approaches, resulting in acquisition of 
knowledge, skills and motivation to strengthen the profitability of animal and plant production systems, 
protect natural resources, help people make healthful lifestyle choices, ensure a safe and abundant food 
supply, encourage community vitality and prepare the next generation of leaders; 
 
 

92



 THEREFORE, be it resolved, that the Currituck County Board of Commissioners: 
 
Recognizes the significance of the Smith-Lever Act to the establishment of Cooperative Extension 
nationwide. 
 
Encourages the people of Currituck County to observe and celebrate the centennial with a focus on 
congratulating the accomplishments of the past 100 years and ensuring a thriving future for Cooperative 
Extension.  
  
Honors the local Extension Agents and university faculty who dedicate careers to providing trusted 
education to help people, families, youth, businesses and communities solve problems, develop skills 
and build a better future. 
 
Thanks Cooperative Extension volunteers who provide thousands of hours to promote excellence for    
4-H, Master Gardeners, family and consumer sciences and other programs in their communities. 
 
Encourages continued collaboration and cooperation among federal, state and local governments to 
ensure Cooperative Extension’s sustainability as the nation’s premiere nonformal educational network. 
 
Celebrates millions of youth, adults, families, farmers, community leaders and others who engage in 
Cooperative Extension learning opportunities designed to extend knowledge and change lives. 
 
 
In North Carolina, Currituck County and commend this observance to all. 
 
ADOPTED this the 7th day of July, 2014. 
 
ATTEST:      _________________________ 
       S. Paul O’Neal 
______________________    Chairman 
Leeann Walton 
Clerk to the Board 
 

93



 

 
 
 
 
 

FIRE PUMP PERFORMANCE TEST REPORT 
CHIEF BRUCE NEAL 
CHESTERTOWN VOLUNTEER  FIRE COMPANY 
211 MAPLE AVENUE 
CHESTERTOWN , MD 21620 

 
TEST CONDUCTED JUNE 5, 2014 

 
This report certifies that Tower 6 of the Chestertown Volunteer  Fire Company satisfactorily 
completed a fire pump performance test.  The test was completed in accordance with the 
National Fire Protection Association Standard 1911, 2012 Edition. The test was conducted by 
Brian Wharton of FireOne and witnessed by members of the fire company .  Details and results 
of the test are as follows : 

 
APPARATUS 

 
APPARATUS NUMBER : Tower 6 of the Chestertown Volunteer  Fire Company 
MANUFACTURER:  Sutphen  Corporation YEAR BUILT: 08/1989 
MANUFACTURER 'S MODEL: Tower Ladder Pumper 
SERIAL NUMBER : 1S9A3KFEOK1003687 

 
ODOMETER: 55,031 Miles ENGINE HOURS: 4,246 
ENGINE MAKE:  Detroit Diesel MODEL: ftV92TA 1/9;.Tit 
PUMP MAKE: Hale MODEL: QSG150-23 
PUMP CAPACITY : 1500 gpm @ 150 psi, single stage 
ENGINE TO PUMP GEAR RATIO:   2.27 TRANSMISSION  GEAR USED: D 

 
SUCTION HOSE SIZE: 6 inch LENGTH: 10 feet LIFT: 3 feet from draft 
SPEED CHECK TAKEN FROM: Main drive shaft, (1 to 1 ratio to engine speed) 
TEST SITE LOCATION: Chestertown Fire Station parking lot 
ATMOSPHERIC  PRESSURE: 29.70 in. hg. AIR TEMPERATURE: 62 Degrees F 
WATER TEMPERATURE : 60 Degrees F TEST SITE ELEVATION : 20 ft. msl 

 
The purpose of this test is to demonstrate that the pump/engine combination is capable of 
meeting the performance requirements of the apparatus design .  Records of the performance 
tests are important evidence of apparatus maintenance. 

 
 
 

610-789-2188 www .Fire-One.com  P.O. Box 1040 
Drexel Hill, PA 19026 

NE 

94



 

Tower 6 of the Chestertown Volunteer  Fire Company 
June 5, 2014 

 
TEST  RESULTS 

 
1. ENGINE SPEED TEST.  This test determines if the engine is capable of reaching its no load 
governed speed.  The no load engine speed is 2250 rpm and is satisfactory. 

 
2.  VACUUM TEST.  A vacuum test of five minutes duration ensures that the pump and attached 
piping are still tight.  The vacuum drop in 5 minutes was -20 in. hg. and is not satisfactory. 

 
3.  PRESSURE CONTROL TEST. A pressure control test ensures that the pressure control 
device can control the discharge pressure within 30 psi of its setting across the operating range 
of the pump pressures. 

 
Pressure rise at 760 gpm @ 250 psi +3 psi 

Pressure rise at 1500 gpm @ 150 psi +12 psi 
Pressure rise at 1210 gpm @ 90 psi +1O psi 

 
4. GAUGE CALIBRATION.  The apparatus gauges are checked for calibration within 10 psi of a 
master calibrated gauge.  All gauges tested were observed to be within calibration. 

 
5. TANK-TO- PUMP FLOW RATE.  This was found to be 525 gpm flowing at 150 psi with a 
vacuum of - 14 in. hg. and engine rpm's of 1550. 

 
6. FLOW TEST . A test pumping from draft for 20 minutes at 100% of rated capacity at 150 psi 
net pump pressure; 1O minutes at 70% of rated capacity at 200 psi net pump pressure ; and 1O 
minutes at 50% of rated capacity at 250 psi net pump-pressure. 

 
 TIME 

 
min. 

ENGINE 
RPM 
rpm 

VACUUM 
 

in. hg. 

PUMP 
GAUGE 

psi 

TEST 
GAUGE 

FLOW 
 

aom psi 
150 psi 20 1397 -11.0 150 150 1510 
165 psi 5 1462 -12.0 165 165 1590 
200 psi 10 1503 -6.0 200 200 1055 
250 psi 10 1680 -4.0 250 250 755 

 

CONCLUSION  AND  RESULTS 
 

The engine , pump, transmission and all parts of the apparatus showed no undue heating, loss 
of power, over speed, or any other major defect during this entire test. The pumping system is 
in fair condition.  Our only comment is the pump packing leaks. 

 
 
 
 
 

-2- 
 
 
 
 

www .fire-one.com 

95



 

 
 

AERIAL DEVICE PERFORMANCE TEST REPORT 

CHIEF BRUCE NEAL 
CHESTERTOWN VOLUNTEER  FIRE COMPANY 
211 MAPLE AVENUE 
CHESTERTOWN,  MD 21620 

 
 

TEST CONDUCTED JUNE 6, 2014 
 
This report certifies that the 4-section aerial device, Tower 6 of the Chestertown Volunteer 
Fire Company, satisfactorily completed inspection and testing in accordance with NFPA 
1911, Performance Testing of Fire Department Aerial Devices, 2012 Edition. There are 
recommended service items listed in the conclusion of this report. The test was conducted 
by Peter Carrion of FireOne and witnessed by members of the fire company. 

 
APPARATUS 

APPARATUS: Tower 6 of the Chestertown Volunteer  Fire Company 
FINAL MANUFACTURER: Sutphen Corporation DATE BUILT: 8/1989 
CHASSIS MANUFACTURER: Sutphen Corporation 
VEHICLE IDENTIFICATION NO.: 1S9A3KFEOK1003687 

 
AERIAL DEVICE MANUFACTURER: Sutphen Corporation 
AERIAL CONSTRUCTION: Aluminum 
AERIAL MODEL:  TS-100+ Mid Mount 
RATED VERTICAL HEIGHT: 100 ft 
ODOMETER:  55,049.3 Miles 

AERIAL S/N: HS 2316 
NO. OF SECTIONS: 4 
ENGINE HOURS: 4,247.2 

 

TEST LOCATION:  Chestertown Vol. Fire Co. parking lot, Chestertown, MD 
WEATHER CONDITIONS:  Clear 
TEMPERATURE:   67 degrees F APPROX. WIND VELOCITY:  8 mph 

 
 
Because aerial devices are subject to damage and overstress , the inspection and testing 
of this device was completed in an effort to ensure at least a minimum degree of safety 
under continued use. 

 
 
610-789-2188 www .Fire-One.com P'.O. Box 1040 

Orexel Hill, PA 19026 

96



Tower 6 of the Chestertown Volunteer Fire Company 
June 6, 2014 
Page 2 

 

 
 

TEST  RESULTS 
 

VISUAL  INSPECTION 
 

This form of inspection is based on a qualified engineering judgment as to whether or not 
the aerial device can safely remain in service. The visual inspection is for the detection of 
any visible defects, damage, or improperly secured parts. Inspection results are as follows : 

 

• Aerial device in clean condition and free of corrosion : 
• Aerial device free of deformities, unusual wear, and misalignments : 

Pass 
Service 

 

o There is a worn pulley located at the tip of the 3rd section of the 
ladder. The pulley is on the driver side, is visibly tilted, and pictured 
in the conclusion.  The pulley should be replaced. 

 
• Aerial critical welds show no sign of fracture or defect: Pass 
• Stabilization system has no deformities , unusual wear , or misalignments: Pass 
• Aerial hydraulic system shows no sign of leaks from hoses and fittings: Service 

 
o There are slight hydraulic oil leaks on the extension cylinder seals. 
o There is a slight oil leak on the lower valve bank under the aerial 

controls. 
 

• Aerial warning systems , warning signage, and instruction plates: Pass 
• The electrical system is satisfactory and operational: Pass 
• The communication system is satisfactory: Pass 

 
 

DRIFT TEST 
 

The stabilizers , elevation and extension hydraulic cylinders were inspected and the drift 
measured after one hour. All inspection and test results with drift measurements are listed 
below: 

 

• Outriggers 
 
 
 

• Elevation Cylinders 
 

• Extension Cylinders 

Fr. Driver-Side: 
Fr. Pass-Side: 
Re. Driver-Side: 
Re. Pass-Side: 
Driver-Side: 
Pass-Side: 
Driver-Side : 
Pass-Side: 

0.045 in. 
0.024 in. 
0.017 in. 
0.014 in. 
0.143 in. 
0.191 in. 
0.340 in. 
0.345 in. 

 

All measurements are within manufacturer 's specifications Pass 

www .Fire-One.com  

97



Tower 6 of the Chestertown Volunteer Fire Company 
June 6, 2014 
Page 3 

 

 

LOAD TEST 

The aerial device was loaded to maximum capacity based on the load chart posted on the 
aerial device. The results are as follows: 

 

• Rated Capacity @ all degrees elevation, extension, and rotation: 
 
 

AERIAL TWIST 

800 lbs. 
Pass 

 

The aerial device twist was measured following the load test and the results are as follows: 
 

• Turntable setting : 
• Base section twist: 
• 1st fly section twist: 
• 2nd fly section twist: 
• 3rd fly section twist: 
• Platform setting: 
• Total ladder twist: 

1.4 degree passenger side 
0.00"  passenger side 
0.05"  passenger side 
0.00"  passenger side 
0.03"  passenger side 
1.2 degree passenger side 
0.08"  passenger side 

Pass 
 

AERIAL BOW: 
 

• Base section bow: 
• 1st fly section bow: 
• 2nd fly section bow: 
• 3rd fly section bow: 

 
Horizontal side 

0.000 in 
0.131 in 
0.091 in 
0.127 in 

 
Vertical side 

0.233 in 
0.208 in 
0.194 in 
1.151 in 

 

All measurements are within manufacturer's specifications 

WATER  SYSTEM TEST 

Pass 

The aerial device water system was operated up to its maximum pressure rating and the 
flow measured by calibrated nozzle. The waterway leaks and flow meter readings are as 
follows: 

• Turntable swivel seal: 
• Turntable-to-base  section waterway seal: 
• Base section-to-1st fly section waterway seal: 
• 1st fly section-to-2nd fly section waterway seal: 
• 2nd fly section-to-3rd fly section waterway seal: 
• Nozzle seals: 

 
• Waterway relief valve pressure setting: 

0 drips/ min. 
0 drips/ min. 
0 drips/ min. 
0 drips/ min. 
O drips/ min. 
0 drips/ min. 

 
200 psi 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Pass 

Pass 

www .Fire-One.com  

98



Tow,er 6 of the Chestertown Volunteer Fire Company 
June 6, 2014 
Page 4 

 

 
 
 

OPERATIONAL   INSPECTION 
 

NFPA standards state for an aerial of this model should reach maximum elevation, 
extension and rotate 90 degrees within 180 seconds. The  device  performed  the 
operations as follows with hydraulic pressures listed below: 

 

• Operations time & rpm 
• Engine rpm @ idle: 
• Engine rpm @ fast idle: 

121.9 seconds @ 1300 rpm 
700 
1300 

 
• Time to extend ladder fully : 
• Time to retract ladder fully: 
• Time to elevate ladder 60 degrees: 
• Time to lower ladder 60 degrees: 
• Time to rotate ladder 360 degrees (left): 
• Time to rotate ladder 360 degrees (right): 

63.4 seconds 
57.3 seconds 
32.2 seconds 
36.2 seconds 
94.0 seconds 
93.6 seconds 

 
• Hydraulic relief pressure (extension): 
• Hydraulic relief pressure (retraction): 
• Hydraulic relief pressure (elevation): 
• Hydraulic relief pressure (down bedded): 

1500 psi 
1500 psi 
1500 psi 
1500 psi 

 

• Extension pressure: 
• Retraction pressure: 
• Elevation pressure: 
• Lowering pressure : 
• Rotation pressure (left) : 
• Rotation pressure (right): 
• 3 function pressure: 
• Jacks stowing relief pressure: 

1600 psi 
1500 psi 
1450 psi 
1500 psi 
900 psi 
900 psi 
500 psi 
1300 psi 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Pass 

www .Fire-One.com  

99



Tower 6 of the Chestertown Volunteer  Fire Company 
June 6, 2014 
Page 5 

 

 

NON-DESTRUCTIVE  (NOT) INSPECTION 
 

This testing method reveals the structural integrity of the critical joints and fasteners. The 
non-destructive methods and measurements for all pins, bolts, and boom rails are  as 
follows : 

• Base rail hardness: 
• P1 fly rail hardness: 
• 2nd fly rail hardness: 
• 3rd fly rail hardness: 

Barber Colman 
Barber Colman 
Barber Colman 
Barber Colman 

77-79 
78-80 
79-82 
78-81 

 
 
 
 
 

Pass 
 

• Turntable rotation gear backlash : 
• Turntable bearing clearance: 

in. 
in. 

0.205 @ Turntable edge 
0.043 @ Turntable edge 

Pass 
• Turntable welds: 
• Elevation cylinder welds : 
• Platform mounting welds: 
• Outrigger welds : 
• Integrity of all pins: 

visual 
visual 
visual 
visual 
ultrasonic 

satisfactory 
satisfactory 
satisfactory 
satisfactory 
satisfactory 

 
 
 
 
 

Pass 
• Turntable bolt torque: 
• Turntable bolt integrity: 
• Rotation bearing bolt torque: 
• Gear box bolt torque : 
• Turntable support-frame bolt torque: 
• Stabilizer jack bolt torque: 

 
 

HYDRAULIC OIL ANALYSIS 

ft. lbs. 
ultrasonic 
ft. lbs. 
ft. lbs. 
ft. lbs. 
ft. lbs. 

30 bolts @ 150 
satisfactory 
30 bolts @ 150 
4 bolts @ 150 
16 bolts @ 250 
8 bolts @ 500 

Pass 

 

The hydraulic fluid in the reservoir is analyzed to compare the quality of the present oil 
against new oil. This analysis includes the possibility of water  content , oxidation, and 
particle inclusions. 

 
• Oil analysis using an SKF OilCheck TMEH 1 found no unsatisfactory conditions with 

the present hydraulic oil. 
• The conclusion is that the present oil is suitable for continued use. 

www .Fire-One.com  

100



Tower 6 of the Chestertown Volunteer  Fire Company 
 

June 6, 2014 
Page 6 

CONCLUSION 

Results of testing find this aerial device to be in good condition.  Our only comments are as 
follows: 

• There is a worn extension cable pulley located at the tip of the 3rct section of the 
ladder, the pulley is tilted out of alignment and the outer face is worn from rubbing 
(Figure 1 & Figure 2).  The pulley should be replaced. 

• There are slight (class I) hydraulic leaks on the extension cylinder seals (Figure 3). 
It is recommended that these are monitored for worsening conditions. 

• The driver side cradle pad is sheared off (Figure 4), it is recommended that this is 
repaired. 

• There are 10 hydraulic hoses with cracked/worn outer jackets , they are marked with 
a 2012 FireOne sticker (Figure 5), it is recommended that these hoses be replaced. 

o 6 hoses located on the turntable 
o 4 hoses located on the outriggers 

 

age
I
d pull 

Figure 1: Damaged pulley located at the tip of the 3rd section on the driver side 

www .Fire-One.com  

101



From: Mitchell Copeland [mailto:mitchcopeland@hotmail.com]  
Sent: Friday, June 27, 2014 6:16 AM 
To: Dan Scanlon 
Cc: Chris Daily; Crystal Daneker; Evelyn Henley 
Subject: Crawford Apparatus Request 
Importance: High 
 
Dan, 
  
The F&EMSAB met last night (6/26/2014) to address the immediate request from 
Crawford Volunteer Fire Department in replacing their recently failed ladder truck. 
Crawford’s current ladder truck has a failed tower, is a 1966 model, and would require 
an extreme amount of funds to repair. They have found what they suggest will meet 
their needs for the foreseeable future. Here are the basic specifications concerning the 
proposed apparatus: 
  
1989 Sutphen Tower Ladder Pumper 
55000+ miles 
4250 engine hours 
95ft Aerial height  
Currently in the service of Chestertown Volunteer Fire Department (Maryland) 
All inspections are current (can place in service immediately for ISO compliance) 
Yearly service contract records for past four (4) years are available and have been 
reviewed 
Yearly service contract of $1,400 will transfer with apparatus 
Price: $100,000.00 
More information can be found at their website http://www.chestertownvfc.org/ 
  
The current owner has agreed to replace the pump packing, two tires, and tower hose 
prior to delivery. This apparatus is currently in service and the owner projects delivery of 
the replacement unit on July 11, 2014.  
  
The F&EMSAB has voted to approve this immediate/emergent (due to equipment 
failure) purchase utilizing Equipment Replacement Funds, and we ask that the BOC 
approve this purchase due to the fact that Crawford Fire Department operates the only 
aerial device on Currituck’s mainland. 
  
I have attached the pump and aerial test reports along with a picture of the apparatus. 
Please feel free to contact me or Chief Dailey if further information is needed. 
  
Thank you, 
  
 
Mitch Copeland 
(757)650-0402  
 

102

mailto:mitchcopeland@hotmail.com
http://www.chestertownvfc.org/


103



104



105



10
6



10
7



10
8



10
9



Meeting Date:  Agenda #  

SUBJECT:

REQUESTED ACTION:

Submitted by:  Department: 

Date submitted:  Attachments: Yes X No

REVIEW PROCESS:

County Manager Yes No

County Attorney Yes No

Finance Director Yes No

Yes No

REVIEW COMMENTS:

ITEM TO BE CONSIDERED

Report of Insolvents and Resolution Approving the Settlement with the Tax Collector
for Insolvents

Accept the list of Insolvents and Approve the Resolution for the Settlement with the Tax 
Collector for Insolvents.
Return a signed copy for the Tax Collector's records.

Tax

Approved

Tracy Sample

24-Jun-14

CURRITUCK COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

July 7th 2014

110



COUNTY OF CURRITUCK 
Tax Department 

P.O. Box 9 
Currituck, North Carolina 27929 

 

 

 

      Tracy Sample, Tax Administrator 
                 (252)   232-3005 
                 (252)   232-3568 (FAX) 

 

Reports of Insolvents 
 

TO:     Currituck County Board of County Commissioner 
 
 
 The following list contain delinquent personal property taxes that have been due for over 5 
(five) years and are owed by deceased taxpayers and/or businesses that are no longer in 
business. 
 
 The undersigned Tax Collector respectfully reports that certain personal property taxes 
levied for the years shown below, remain uncollected, such uncollected being set out below. Said 
taxes are not liens upon liens upon real estate. The undersigned Tax Collector has made diligent 
efforts to collect said taxes by use of remedies against personal property as provided by law but has 
been unable to locate sufficient property belonging to delinquent taxpayers out of which the taxes 
might be collected. In every instance in which the existence of property belonging to delinquent 
taxpayers within other taxing units in North Carolina, the undersigned has proceeded under the 
provisions of G.S. 105-364. 
 
                Principal 
Tax Year   Bill# Taxpayer’s Name            Amount   Remarks 
2005 1087 RATCLIFFE, DAVID A (DECEASED) 7.42 Deceased 
2006 1487 RATCLIFFE, DAVID A (DECEASED) 7.01 Deceased 
2007 1082 RATCLIFFE, DAVID A (DECEASED) 7.18 Deceased 
2006 7178 WALTON, LORI TURNER (DECEASED) 49.87 Deceased 
2005 1159 WILLIAMS, MICHAEL (DECEASED) 16.59 Deceased 
2008 12 ALL H INC 648.11 Out of Business 
2006 10041 AMERON INTERNATIONAL CORP 64.61 Out of Business 
2006 518 ATLANTIC BEACH BUILDERS INC 26.26 Out of Business 
2007 119 ATLANTIC BEACH BUILDERS INC 21.34 Out of Business 
2008 117 ATLANTIC BEACH BUILDERS INC 25.82 Out of Business 
2005 157 BRIDAL WORKS 14.73 Out of Business 
2007 5648 CAROLINA COASTAL HOMES INC 53.31 Out of Business 
2008 10865 CAROLINA COASTAL HOMES INC 88.61 Out of Business 
2006 17868 CLASSIC CUSTOM POOLS & SPAS INC 9.02 Out of Business 
2005 494 CURRITUCK ELECTRIC RADIO & ALCHEMY 90.27 Out of Business 
2008 71 DAVID JAMES OBX, INC 176.00 Out of Business 
2007 1602 DOG DAZE DIGITAL 123.20 Out of Business 
2008 75 DREAMCATCHERS  17.60 Out of Business 
2007 23417 EAST CAROLINA METAL ROOF, SUPPLY CORP IN 6.05 Out of Business 
2005 241 FIRST COAST GENERAL CONTRACTORS INC 1,583.61 Out of Business 
2007 19393 FRB CUSTOM HOMES OF NORTHEASTERN NC LLC 52.19 Out of Business 
2007 269 GALAXY VIDEO 35.20 Out of Business 
2008 278 GALAXY VIDEO 38.72 Out of Business 

111

http://208.64.234.79:10091/sites/mu0627/Live/Views/PassThru.aspx?-E=GjX4QA149oZV9LVEskVidOObLMHuQttWWue4OfVknzAPYJRYDkdUusQk9s10ekOp&
http://208.64.234.79:10091/sites/mu0627/Live/Views/PassThru.aspx?-E=XD3i7TE2lnRD/Pl7Au8f6Dk69I/IqbWhmjxehGIYeZK7G3x2FVldTmQ6CUa07ajK&
http://208.64.234.79:10091/sites/mu0627/Live/Views/PassThru.aspx?-E=iKQDwcs6UYuX2390ZHwibTRd7thyL4Tr4WV8vU0S1jSzpSBNhskPyk35/EtUel5V&
http://208.64.234.79:10091/sites/mu0627/Live/Views/PassThru.aspx?-E=JrSjO5FMu88gswP1IrYi20pmWlD%2BdLsCmOs10xmE2GrqYjzkZCHHekBbx0BL4lwy&
http://208.64.234.79:10091/sites/mu0627/Live/Views/PassThru.aspx?-E=Ay/UEQD%2BKkdVAnAe7xJvBUJ6j76ogkUTtXXsV4438aQZzTbf463R5F%2BNgGiNxwGm&
http://208.64.234.79:10091/sites/mu0627/Live/Views/PassThru.aspx?-E=UJjhPVecLuhB3sQhOtpF6NZtEMpsX/zk4vw7ujpQLBbT4qEXrMAqSY9ATOjdSag7&
http://208.64.234.79:10091/sites/mu0627/Live/Views/PassThru.aspx?-E=Nfz5yaewUqsiPPHQXKvMlIyyZYv3lr5m/4Uy/flesuDIoUvjg5Wd0Mru9ZGtdb%2BH&
http://208.64.234.79:10091/sites/mu0627/Live/Views/PassThru.aspx?-E=ix1WZXYk6Twevns%2BFJlDmFyZpflRqyXgW/2ZXRdcfOzOP7Lcp2D%2Bqb81fTbxEg2P&
http://208.64.234.79:10091/sites/mu0627/Live/Views/PassThru.aspx?-E=7AYXOiT%2BODgAk0YxMQQ4cm14Jb2KZGuRZta0YzSE/kgGHL4rjHTaBN9/i03t59lQ&
http://208.64.234.79:10091/sites/mu0627/Live/Views/PassThru.aspx?-E=1Yz9kygoCcsqwc%2Bfj0AJ5N%2B7tP/kjGh2jIiRxqm2OWtD37yn%2BvOXq4c20ajYmd7N&
http://208.64.234.79:10091/sites/mu0627/Live/Views/PassThru.aspx?-E=tjZ6nl6xF/HXakAfbaS4yaL%2BpOfTJn2EZoZvDR0eKvSaSr0n%2Bix2tn1NyEvRmbrh&
http://208.64.234.79:10091/sites/mu0627/Live/Views/PassThru.aspx?-E=fgy3Ok1EEvgI28CRCls6s2F1BdgEn1qW2QxtJNbIo%2BCmVvjjHGUTe8%2BJ6zUScZAR&
http://208.64.234.79:10091/sites/mu0627/Live/Views/PassThru.aspx?-E=yjBzKJvnybm7/cxGzzGbDdBnvTpwuTORN5A97riRoQxXZUK9jhXDufxtJbV3ThlW&
http://208.64.234.79:10091/sites/mu0627/Live/Views/PassThru.aspx?-E=sbPTAT5/jZL3c%2BhnfV9ftMbzUPV1BkIL3c%2BsIPgY/TvwejM75PWfLrdHjTVBULrl&
http://208.64.234.79:10091/sites/mu0627/Live/Views/PassThru.aspx?-E=1j62/4g5o/OVH/mdE637AUg%2BVmbI6G4zQO%2BAksPE0zk1Jc2314GaInKdw12/7zRQ&
http://208.64.234.79:10091/sites/mu0627/Live/Views/PassThru.aspx?-E=CEmCFR8ocVZYZm5Ua2ifnJszA/7a2ZuJp/QZ8neh3gyV77UuE3rAooBpFRGX4bmE&
http://208.64.234.79:10091/sites/mu0627/Live/Views/PassThru.aspx?-E=gdGqe3FqyPYRvz5rxo04zConWntQzoQ4WcORhY6ps33wzormNV79SdNJOrEl5JnI&
http://208.64.234.79:10091/sites/mu0627/Live/Views/PassThru.aspx?-E=rc3178GgxQI2D7YyAClc5RMc9TVCWpINAPKhEGEcUv8ilBWZgSvjPoOakFzBhiUY&


2008 647 GIGI'S RESTAURANT LLC 544.72 Out of Business 
2005 1315 GYMSTAR ACADEMY INC 6.77 Out of Business 
2005 17975 GYMSTAR ACADEMY INC 2.02 Out of Business 
2006 1714 GYMSTAR ACADEMY INC 391.98 Out of Business 
2008 13995 H CLAIMS SERVICES INC, 2.61 Out of Business 
2008 14062 HAT CREEK HAULING COMPANY,  INC 45.27 Out of Business 
2007 21666 HERITAGE TITLE LTD 39.32 Out of Business 
2005 294 JACKSON EQUIPMENT LLC 638.68 Out of Business 
2005 25269 JACKSON EQUIPMENT LLC 17.90 Out of Business 
2006 711 JACKSON EQUIPMENT LLC 638.67 Out of Business 
2008 1234 JAVA DELI LLC 413.27 Out of Business 
2006 25161 K C B ENTERPRISES INC 9.82 Out of Business 
2005 27940 KITCHENTECH INC 48.81 Out of Business 
2007 342 LAKE AIRWAYS LLC 915.20 Out of Business 
2008 347 LAKE AIRWAYS LLC 1,006.72 Out of Business 
2008 349 LANDMARK BUILDING & DEVELOPMENT OF NC 529.16 Out of Business 
2008 78 LAREDOS 296.33 Out of Business 
2007 9326 LITTLE MIRACLES DAY CARE INC 34.72 Out of Business 
2007 9327 LITTLE MIRACLES DAY CARE INC 22.21 Out of Business 
2007 9328 LITTLE MIRACLES DAY CARE INC 23.42 Out of Business 
2007 1383 MARKAT PROPERIES LLC 67.14 Out of Business 
2005 1056 MOYOCK FLORIST 22.29 Out of Business 
2006 1460 MOYOCK FLORIST 22.30 Out of Business 
2007 1053 MOYOCK FLORIST 24.21 Out of Business 
2008 63 MR MUNCHIES INC 59.84 Out of Business 
2007 4228 NELSON'S PLUMBING INC, 6.08 Out of Business 
2004 814 NEWAVES ENTERPRISES INC 320.83 Out of Business 
2005 802 NEWAVES ENTERPRISES INC 146.67 Out of Business 
2006 1223 NEWAVES ENTERPRISES INC 146.66 Out of Business 
2007 17827 NORTHBAY AUTO INC, 94.08 Out of Business 
2007 15377 NORTHERN LIGHTS COFFEE INC 8.29 Out of Business 
2008 69 SHALEC LLC 216.48 Out of Business 
2008 518 SUNCOAST POOLS AND SPAS INC 2.47 Out of Business 
2006 905 THORNTON CONSTRUCTION LTD INC 54.22 Out of Business 
2007 10216 TYMUL ENTERPRISES INC 5.89 Out of Business 
2005 1058 WILLIAMS TRAILERS 32.40 Out of Business 
2006 1561 WILLIAMS TRAILERS 29.46 Out of Business 
2007 1157 WILLIAMS TRAILERS 35.65 Out of Business 
2008 1202 WILLIAMS TRAILERS 39.22 Out of Business 
2005 7062 WILSON BROTHERS SIDING CO 5.88 Out of Business 
2008 1050 INDEPENDENT CONTAINERS INC 33.42 Out of Business 

 
 
Respectfully Submitted and Sworn to this the 24th day of June 2014 

 
__________________________________ 
Tracy Sample, Tax Collector 
 

112

http://208.64.234.79:10091/sites/mu0627/Live/Views/PassThru.aspx?-E=f842%2BNDnjgNuFRrEH4sOIxWz6JH/9d3%2BMVX39wybnnruoJM7KhRVZTK/TjgGCPQz&
http://208.64.234.79:10091/sites/mu0627/Live/Views/PassThru.aspx?-E=cH/sWT3ni%2BS7Jl6gxUXsBD585UUNhCX79a4RfJKoEkJPYVWDRiCBkX665IVFG2oF&
http://208.64.234.79:10091/sites/mu0627/Live/Views/PassThru.aspx?-E=CX0C6exn0LCetJ0DPM6KYKF%2B2HCfTOyuE2l/7en%2BPabqny5/hRkPe8QrHy0liQFy&
http://208.64.234.79:10091/sites/mu0627/Live/Views/PassThru.aspx?-E=rl8uZH0PcmhhjcynQNY2J0Eb2qdMIEVvAO7RcDfMulQ66/K067TXi4Qn5YWYCABO&
http://208.64.234.79:10091/sites/mu0627/Live/Views/PassThru.aspx?-E=hLad6rVPDhJcF7zyapAGqYp4rk35J%2B5SI/O63OKvss2U3RAV%2ByIFn17hkq8GJw%2Bu&
http://208.64.234.79:10091/sites/mu0627/Live/Views/PassThru.aspx?-E=43U4Zr6ACwzQ54qw8E84ZCvSyZ2SnlaCobo7sd3%2BI28CBVs3AZaSEsNCMz1FABBO&
http://208.64.234.79:10091/sites/mu0627/Live/Views/PassThru.aspx?-E=1daUE3saXDmiZaf8dn00CqXTDV1QAXEnY%2B%2B/c2HiLwN%2BBYS5G1EijKT5UbzR5GnO&
http://208.64.234.79:10091/sites/mu0627/Live/Views/PassThru.aspx?-E=kPXDjNmk9Yx0JGZeajHyZCJt/Mli9yzNEDVnDEptxZf25hGKA1HmydGK66wqQ5Eh&
http://208.64.234.79:10091/sites/mu0627/Live/Views/PassThru.aspx?-E=eQKVl502nuEZQQ%2BVxTZ3qlNbPsGoXn3LRBnYaCcF6sgtQuVvxkh%2BTMYA%2BxLJ7AvI&
http://208.64.234.79:10091/sites/mu0627/Live/Views/PassThru.aspx?-E=y5LQcDgK8m74t0gzXyaNHbKEs50krN/ZGm%2BoXGLebZuCkZ4vyALXEJ%2ByOLFHt6Gd&
http://208.64.234.79:10091/sites/mu0627/Live/Views/PassThru.aspx?-E=oIy%2B9lfWdTMeLjlaj0cXak%2BbrQ3d6q2ZuWPqd%2B6KlvQoxWJhn70qPGk4RHLSVpxj&
http://208.64.234.79:10091/sites/mu0627/Live/Views/PassThru.aspx?-E=eRAcWhSDe3YFuPjlbVnhN7Qx7ALRM3z3TX9g%2Be30Uoqx8lTLGkeuZXB6spqU79Q3&
http://208.64.234.79:10091/sites/mu0627/Live/Views/PassThru.aspx?-E=MIkPPvik8HYyT9DAzgxY%2BbRZnpDiCWQBogtWMqES5G4R0QaeR4QOaew6RtQFkqiI&
http://208.64.234.79:10091/sites/mu0627/Live/Views/PassThru.aspx?-E=FCZpeTcZFhK5kSU4TUpHNbhWT/L4V2LIvnNbUjPDSVgjifUPtnsylOnV/ZychuYF&
http://208.64.234.79:10091/sites/mu0627/Live/Views/PassThru.aspx?-E=T10rm9Aw0CWQGI8UaU0U%2BSaC6ZhvLaezZkIDujan0Huv%2BFXurlqU%2B92dwV/viKO%2B&
http://208.64.234.79:10091/sites/mu0627/Live/Views/PassThru.aspx?-E=rPRUBvFrt74OAWeZ5EKY43QVTkhAgsHCHvLtoTshZVkTTdBx26ePVRw7yrnP/EGo&
http://208.64.234.79:10091/sites/mu0627/Live/Views/PassThru.aspx?-E=RUzBtMEMbn/hEPQyF7pPfKRMG/rP%2BeMkhCQ/lUBPBRwfCAqI%2BJgXeooR%2B/4hpyxU&
http://208.64.234.79:10091/sites/mu0627/Live/Views/PassThru.aspx?-E=KN2JXkEaZOv/urLi8GOrNrGAPgSrZBUvutXO95B0SIH8GYXF1DB4kBjHec1ZTEkv&
http://208.64.234.79:10091/sites/mu0627/Live/Views/PassThru.aspx?-E=JoGUlH3KzfX074FUekBjpBd%2B8RimlgMCDd%2BLyn/UESnwllAmq0Ty0itR8Yrd/Cvf&
http://208.64.234.79:10091/sites/mu0627/Live/Views/PassThru.aspx?-E=5SJCZfscDcnxx0YQ4T5F4VVzOGxP5HBycQF7RHPfw66KjDsSIgL9xZ%2BXIwjSouji&
http://208.64.234.79:10091/sites/mu0627/Live/Views/PassThru.aspx?-E=fN2eEzFStIeCKsvaBpBb04yHSh1q6nOxPlzT/xx3zZg9s7biiuRMg1wg1CtCh5zD&
http://208.64.234.79:10091/sites/mu0627/Live/Views/PassThru.aspx?-E=4et7tNJaIzrQwxAnXC0ZD/bjnUzc6bnSizILB0l%2BRJmfbjQ0XIwa8cPDI776okbn&
http://208.64.234.79:10091/sites/mu0627/Live/Views/PassThru.aspx?-E=PBHhxrrOasu1/4AeEwQzTMsjfBms%2BlvfAd7luQ3EYGlHwDsXf1%2BRj2zRMTGnbSr0&
http://208.64.234.79:10091/sites/mu0627/Live/Views/PassThru.aspx?-E=XSvSJByoxHpcRQPxViFIJ0EvcY0NHKRSS1HjMPFHyzmuNsZsHcKvJov0oGNoDeE%2B&
http://208.64.234.79:10091/sites/mu0627/Live/Views/PassThru.aspx?-E=jYoZRsK4otFgtrdYbn5qh44RMzr3VB9D/r%2BPe7BibuI7n1k3an/NsXeNLl44JkbT&
http://208.64.234.79:10091/sites/mu0627/Live/Views/PassThru.aspx?-E=aulq/LpWVQR58whSDLe/yszIy7/VRCoJ2gWBaVT/MdALNGfjHUNpMBmVpn0GqoMU&
http://208.64.234.79:10091/sites/mu0627/Live/Views/PassThru.aspx?-E=0TTgtb554WqmmoLT33m/OiEHYpYsRZtjHoTpaogGEiGDS18E1akFJPty6hn4YotS&
http://208.64.234.79:10091/sites/mu0627/Live/Views/PassThru.aspx?-E=Wz8mG1HEw%2B1LWijWC1r%2Brfj9roR1zAit49TYfUJY1ZMvonx/FdNz9ephHUK2ntfb&
http://208.64.234.79:10091/sites/mu0627/Live/Views/PassThru.aspx?-E=aIayLHLaS6Al38JJ/E5LO7bp/e7b5C7wD1Rr8FI%2BnU7m0iChWY2ehda2d6Mq4Ib1&
http://208.64.234.79:10091/sites/mu0627/Live/Views/PassThru.aspx?-E=1J4y541KgHENKRd3yvnv5jNzP5OvSAwhTtmRqSHLPtumly11bBC4eCEKY2MpsaZQ&
http://208.64.234.79:10091/sites/mu0627/Live/Views/PassThru.aspx?-E=ZnrU7nWVvsCuJtPMPURDsJE2diCMsfgLtOzEYIn87mTT/6f8no7j%2BMjd02JHiKZa&
http://208.64.234.79:10091/sites/mu0627/Live/Views/PassThru.aspx?-E=/nUcoikFMT13SLPdhoVRoCEpXdUZSR6JqZGr/kA7hoUxJ6iQJTi11blAtLvj2acw&
http://208.64.234.79:10091/sites/mu0627/Live/Views/PassThru.aspx?-E=GPTps2C4kyspKnoucFdYsA79Ec0WmfTJ2ggSvSBZwgHPMIKQyvgvO/tsvMl46pTt&
http://208.64.234.79:10091/sites/mu0627/Live/Views/PassThru.aspx?-E=f3YFxaHJMDsE5E7x9WPnOBlzVXU8mVUmepn%2Biu88exc6N65yR5t78ue5ZxA6IDrc&
http://208.64.234.79:10091/sites/mu0627/Live/Views/PassThru.aspx?-E=4UVeeFok6rmf95xccKA/rx1M11ijHRv9JKoi2UkVnzT42HWPTr9/audxlraP3wC2&
http://208.64.234.79:10091/sites/mu0627/Live/Views/PassThru.aspx?-E=nKqkhVwZM2X8tk5R7hntbX7EFDwDfUl7dI7ik3jrI0IV5168L5lybw9pdBBgwUp8&
http://208.64.234.79:10091/sites/mu0627/Live/Views/PassThru.aspx?-E=9JRSeDaONYT5T112AWvVdtEqFyum423NlA4Ct86cZdHEedSLIaMYKqEU7qAq%2BHSI&
http://208.64.234.79:10091/sites/mu0627/Live/Views/PassThru.aspx?-E=A5FPXjR8q3ex1Ng6YaO6reLTceXKzFG83Wbc3GnN3IH2rBj4qVY%2BO/vFWuP7jQVn&
http://208.64.234.79:10091/sites/mu0627/Live/Views/PassThru.aspx?-E=hqiBOQCHkPYR7RA09arppX8Tadhpf1q9t1/9ohP14jlQErLmRO35Ibi7nnUc5Oei&
http://208.64.234.79:10091/sites/mu0627/Live/Views/PassThru.aspx?-E=InCxm82S2MAUSmvC19E5a6wMWDEk3Aehg2IBU8Pkv1G%2BCu45v%2B1R9%2B/hIam3NyPn&
http://208.64.234.79:10091/sites/mu0627/Live/Views/PassThru.aspx?-E=rFEcmST3FAC5SVxVRoB2SNGG22Yq0%2BS6mQ5cfFKAgXSsqmxUvau0OamZu1ad3RlR&


 
 
 
 
 
 

Resolution Approving the Settlement with the Tax Collector for Insolvents 
 

 
  WHEREAS, N.C.G.S. 105-373 requires that settlement be made with the Tax Collector for 

taxes charged to the Tax Collector; and 
 
  WHEREAS, N.C.G.S. 105-373(a2) allows for the designating of persons owing taxes (but 

who own no real property) that are found to be insolvent; and 
 
  WHEREAS, N.C.G.S. 105-373(g) provides for the governing body of any taxing unit may, in 

its discretion, relieve the tax collector of the charge of taxes owed by persons on the insolvent list 
that are over five or years past due when it appears to the governing body that such taxes are 
uncollectible;  

 
  NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED AS FOLLOWS: 
 

1. Those persons and entities identified in the Report of Insolvents submitted by the Tax 
Collector are found to be insolvent. 
 

2. The insolvents list shall be credited to the Tax Collector as part of his settlement. 
 

3. The Tax Collector is relieved of the charge of taxes owned by persons and entities on the 
insolvents list that are five or more years past due. 
 

THIS the 7th day of July, 2014. 
 
   THE CURRITUCK COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
 
 
    BY: ______________________________________(SEAL) 
         S. Paul O’neal, Chairman 
 
Attest: 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Clerk to the Board 

 

113



 

 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 

Date: July 1, 2014 
 

To: Currituck County Board of Commissioners 
Dan Scanlon, County Manager 

 
From:  Michelle Perry, Engineer Technician 

Eric Weatherly, County Engineer 
 

RE: Parks and Recreation Maintenance Facility 
Recommendation of Award 

 
 

 

 
 

The Parks and Recreation Maintenance Facility consists of a 6000sf metal building for the storage 
of Maintenance Equipment for the Parks and Recreation Department. It is located on College Way 
at Currituck Community Park, just beyond the Regional Aviation and Technical Training Facility  
(see attached Master Plan). 

 
A bid opening was held on June 3rd and there were four bids received: Sussex Development 
Corporation, TCC Enterprises, Inc. (TCC), Godfrey Construction, LLC, and A.R. Chesson Construction 
Company. TCC was the apparent low bidder with a bid of $615,525.00. County staff met with 
the engineer and TCC to review options for value engineering to reduce costs of the project. As a 
result, the bid was reduced by $24,000.00. 

 
Staff recommends the award to go to TCC Enterprises, Inc. in the amount of $591,525.00, and 
requests authorization for the County Manager to execute contract documents. The Engineer’s 
Recommendation of Award and bid tab are attached. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

1 | P a g e  

Currituck County 
153 Courthouse Road, Suite 302 
Currituck, North Carolina 27929 

252-232-6034 
FAX 252-232-3298 

Michelle.Perry@CurrituckCountyNC.gov 

114

mailto:Michelle.Perry@CurrituckCountyNC.gov


. . . . . . . . . . .'. \ 

= 

- 

 
 
 

/ I 
I I 

I I 
I 

I I 

1-jf< 

 
 
 
 

1 · 

\. . . . . . . . . . . . ' 
\ . . . . . . . . . . . . \... 
. . . . . . . . . . . . 

S I J\ :_::: rn 
50!.lllWIS =:::;:    llI1f1----! 

Currituck 
 

c:J 2 Mile Trail ::,,.;,•• •••• •• • ••• ••••• ••••   ':':• •• • '' 

Community Park 
= 0 

 D Cl   c::'.J 

(Outer Loop)  
'\ 

····:··-.·.-.- .-.-.·.·.·.·.· . .\ 
 

May 21, 2012 

Master Pilan 
 

rMWaeinll1l"1ndRO  

\\• 

 
 

a •.• 

- .......... ... . . ...................... \ 

0 NC Dept.al 
C«rtctlonl 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

future""""- 
Malnl•nd WeU  "-. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(SliOllTCUT ROAD  100' R/W) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Future 

 
 

A 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

r· --_,._ -----Pkk- r- ..
 

--, ----- 'OnlrGRWAYTSg- - ----- 
Marund weu 

Multi-purpose :,• 

.,, 

.  

' 

115



Field Complex // 

116



1 
HYMAN 11-• 

ROBEY- 
 
 

June 30, 2014 
 

Mr. Eric Weatherly, PE 
Currituck County Engineer 
153 Courthouse Road, Suite 302 
Currituck, NC 27929 

 

Subject: Bid Opening and Recommendation of Award 
Currituck County Parks & Recreation Maintenance Facility 
H&R Project Number: 130304 

 
Dear Mr. Weatherly: 

 

On Tuesday, June 3, 2014 at 2:00 pm, bids were opened for the Currituck County Parks & Recreation 
Maintenance Facility project. Four bids were received from the following contractors:  Sussex 
Development Corporation, TCC Enterprises, Inc., Godfrey Construction, LLC, and A.R. Chesson 
Construction Company. 

 
The apparent low bidder is TCC Enterprises, Inc. with a bid of $615,525 (which represents the base bid 
plus total unit prices). To bring the project within budget, a meeting was held on June 11,2014 with 
David Thomas of TCC Enterprises, Inc., Currituck County Engineering staff and Hyman & Robey, PC staff 
to discuss value engineering items. The following items are being presented as cost reductions for the 
project: 

 
Value  Engineering Items Recommended: 

 
Reduction of Unit Price Quantities: 
Reduce quantity of Undercut and Backfill by 750 CY @ $10.00/ CY 
Reduce quantity of Select Borrow from County Stockpile by 375 CY @ 14.00/CY 
Reduce quantity of Off Site Select Borrow by 375 CY @ 14.00/CY 

Sub-total unit price reductions 

 

$  7,500.00 
$  5,250.00 
$  5,250.00 
$ 18,000.00 

 
Value engineering credits to the base bid: 
Credit for hauling undercut soil material to Maple Commerce Park WWTP 
Credit for burning on site 
Credit for changing exterior building lights to metal halide 
Credit for substitution of garage doors 

Sub-total VE credits to the base bid 

 

$  2,000.00 
$  2,500.00 
$ 500.00 
$ 1,000.00 
$  6,000.00 

TOTAL Value Engineering: $24,000.00 
 
 

Therefore the Base Bid of $558,500 is reduced by $6,000 to $552,500, and the sum of the Unit Prices, 
$57,025 is reduced by $18,000 to $39,025 for a total Base Bid plus Total Unit Prices of $ 591,525.00 

 
 
 
 
 

 

P. 0. Box 339 Camden, North Carolina 27921 
(252) 338-29 13     License C-0598 

www.hyma nrobey.com 
117



Mr. Eric Weatherly, PE - Currituck County Parks & Recreat ion Maintenance Facility 
June 30, 2014 
Page 2 

 
 
 

After final review of the bid documents and the cost reductions presented, we recommend the contract 
be awarded to TCC Enterprises, Inc.for the amount of $591,525.00. Please note that alternates are not 
recommended for award. 

 
Enclosed please find a copy of the Bid Summary sheet as well as a disk containing copies of all of the 

actual bid documents. 
 
 

If you have additional questions, please do not hesitate to call me directly at (252) 337-8988. 
 

 

cc:        file 
 

Attachment(s): Bid Summary Sheet 
Disk 

118



'/ 

... .::-  

, 

 
 

Date of Bid Opening : 
June 3, 2014, 2:00 pm 

 
 

CENTRAL ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 
Currituck County Parks Recreation Maintenance Facility 

HYMAN•- 
Bid Tabulation Results 

ROBEY1 
 

Owner: Currituck County 
 
 

 TCC  Godfre y 

 Description Quantity Unit Unit Price Total Amout Unit Price Total Amout 
Base Bid Base Bid 1EA $ 558,500.00 $ 558,500.00 $ 593,000.00 $ 593,000.00 

100 Undercut and Backfill 1500 CY $ 10.00 $ 15,000.00 $ 15.15 $ 22,725.00 
 

101 
Select Borrow from County 
Stockpile 

 
750 

 
CY 

 
$ 14.00 

 
$ 

 
10,500.00 

 
$ 5.60 

 
$ 

 
4,200.00 

102 Off-site Select Borrow 750 CY $ 14.00 $ 10,500.00 $ 10.50 $ 7,875.00 
103 Additional Clearing 1LS $ 8,500.00 $ 8,500.00 $ 7,900.00 $ 7,900.00 
104 Trash Removal 1LS $ 25.00 $ 25.00 $ 120.00 $ 120.00 

 

105 
Allowance 1- Construction 
Stakeout 

   
$ 7,500.00 

 
$ 

 

7,500.00 
 
$ 7,500.00 

 
$ 

 

7,500.00 1LS 
106 Allowance 2 - Equipment  LS $ 5,000.00 $ 5,000.00 $ 5,000.00 $ 5,000.00 

Total Unit Prices    $ 57,025.00  $ 55,320.00 
Base Bid + Total Unit Prices + Alternates   As Read $ 615,525.00 As Read $ 648,320.00 
    As Calculated $ 615,525.00 As Calculated $ 648,320.00 
Al Concrete Pavement 1SY $ 41.00 $ 55.00 $ 53.00 $ 2,218.05 
A2 611  SDR21 PVC Watermain 1 LS $ (4,100.00) $ (3,500.00) $ (6,000.00) $ (6,000.00} 
Total Alternates    $ (3,445.00)  $ (3,781.95) 

 
The above bid results for this project were review\\i IMH:J1 1 , 

'':.\.\.\..C..A...R..0.1l,,111  
. ..·0<rr.ss10;:•• '? 

...:.::.:.:' • q_ ·v'.<.,;.• · 

=; /: SEAL \ 
::: ·.. 

18550 : :: 
.,, 
"' 

··. tvr>1Nc!i;«. -••• :· /'l.  U.n(':: ••••".',,.,<.-••••  -- ';' 

/./..//'//If c.Rll  "" " 
111111111111 ,,,,, 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Prepared by Hyman Robey, PC Page 2 of 2 119



•'R-\)' -  · '1.1..t:·. - 
/q 

SEAL 
. - 18550 

\ - 

.J 

 
 

Date of Bid Opening : 
June 3, 2014,2:00 pm 

 
 

CENTRAL ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 
Currituck County Parks Recreation Maintenance Facility 

Bid Tabulation Results 

HYMAN•-1

 

ROBEY-, 

 
Owner: Currituck County 

 
 

 Engineer's Estimate AR Chesson Sussex 

 Description Quantity Unit Unit Price Total Amout Unit Price Total Amout Unit Price Total Amout 
Base Bid Base Bid 1EA $ 488,706.19 $   488,706.19 $ 582,500.00 $ 582,500.00 $ 726,673.00  $ 726,673.00 

100 Undercut and Backfill 1500 CY $ 18.00 $ 27,000.00 $ 14.56 $ 21,840.00 $ 10.38 $ 15,570.00 
 

101 
Select Borrow from County 
Stockpile 

 
750 

 
CY 

 
$ 4.25 

 
$ 3,187.50 

 
$ 6.24 

 
$ 4,680.00 

 
$ 5.19 

 
$ 3,892.50 

102 Off-site Select Borrow 750 CY $ 9.50 $ 7,125.00 $ 10.00 $ 7,500.00 $ 9.08 $ 6,810.00 
103 Additional Clearing 1LS $ 7,000.00 $ 7,000.00 $ 8,320.00 $ 8,320.00 $ 7,239.80 $ 7,239 .80 
104 Trash Removal 1LS   $ 125.00 $ 125 .00 $ 181.64 $ 181.64 

 

105 
Allowance 1- Construction 
Stakeout 

   
$ 7,500.00 

 
$ 7,500.00 

 
$ 7,500.00 

 
$ 7,500.00 

 
$ 7,500.00 

 
$ 7,500.00 1LS 

106 Allowance 2 - Equipment 1LS $ 5,000.00 $ 5,000.00 $ 5,000.00 $ 5,000.00 $ 5,000.00 $ 5,000.00 
Total Unit Prices    $ 14,500.00  $ 49,965.00  $ 46,193.94 
Base Bid + Total Unit Prices + Alternates    $ - As Read $ 632,465.00 As Read $ 77,867.00 

     $ - As Calculated $ 632,465.00 As Calculated $ 772,866.94 
Al Concrete Pavement 1SY $ 48.00 $ 48.00 $ 41.85 $ 41.85 $ 41.00 $ 41.00 
A2 6" SDR21 PVC Watermain 1LS   $ (6,090.00) $ (6,090.00) $ (4,100.00) $ (4,100.00) 
Total Alternates      $ (6,048.15)  $ (4,059.00) 

 
The above bid results for this project were reviewed and approved by: 

 
 
 
 
 
 

-:::. ·. .· ' 

  / 5a/;c/   
Date 

'l. ··. l\tGINf-€./ 

%d'   ........... ,":' 
'/11 '4/i C • RO ,,, . 

111/ / / fl fl 1111111' 
 
 
 
 

Prepared by Hyman Robey, PC Page 1of 2 120



121



122



123



DEPUTY DIRECTOR OF ELECTIONS 
 
 
GENERAL DEFINITION OF WORK: 
Provides professional, administrative, and technical services in providing free, open, 
honest, and professionally managed election services to the citizens of Currituck County. 
Acts as the director in the director’s absence; provides other related duties as necessary. 
 
The position operates under general supervision and is supervised by the Elections 
Director. 
 
TYPICAL TASKS: 
Serves as department computer technology expert; oversees and maintains election night 
reporting system; coordinates with Information Services and the State Board of Elections 
regarding software, hardware, firmware, printers, passwords, etc.; ensures Board of 
Elections’ technology is current and accurate. 
 
Maintains campaign finance reports and materials; notifies candidates of required reports 
and assists candidates in completion; advises candidates, political parties, citizens, and 
the media on all aspects of campaign finance law; posts campaign finance information. 
 
Ensures temporary elections workers understand elections procedures and equipment; 
ensures that equipment and materials are available and operating at precinct locations 
throughout the County. 
 
Performs other related duties as assigned. 
 
KNOWLEDGE, SKILLS, AND ABILITIES: 
Extensive knowledge of Federal, State, and County laws and procedures pertaining to 
elections and elections records; thorough knowledge of State Election Information 
Management System (SEIMS) rules and procedures; thorough knowledge of office 
management techniques including the ability to organize work flow and coordinate 
activities; considerable knowledge of effective supervisory practices; extensive computer 
skills, ability to explain election law and procedures; skill in providing public information 
and customer service; ability to function under pressure and meet deadlines; ability to 
modify and update training manuals and forms and to educate temporary workers 
regarding changes in laws and procedures; ability to establish and maintain effective 
working relationships with citizens, State Board of Elections, the media (print, radio, and 
television), elected officials, candidates, political party officials, political action 
committee officials, politicians, and other boards of elections; ability to interpret and 
analyze applicable program content objectives and make necessary decisions; ability to 
communicate and articulate ideas clearly and accurately in person and in writing. 
 
 
 
 

124



EDUCATION AND EXPERIENCE: 
Applicant must possess excellent computer skills, knowledge of Microsoft and Excel 
applications, general knowledge of office equipment and procedures, organizational 
skills, and have the ability to work well with the general public.  An Associate Degree in 
business, computer science, or related fields or a combination of education and 
experience is required.  
 
SPECIAL REQUIREMENTS: 
Applicant must complete precinct worker and chief judge training within one year of 
employment. Must enroll and pass all courses required to earn North Carolina 
certification as a Certified Elections Administrator within four years of employment. 
They must also earn a Notary Commission.  Applicant must be willing to attend out of 
county training and work extended hours during the election cycles.  Applicant must be 
physically able to lift election tabulators and supplies up to twenty-five pounds.  
 
 
 
__________________________ 
Chairman 
 
 
 
__________________________ 
Secretary 
 
 
 
__________________________ 
Member 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ED: July 7, 2014 (REV/ BOC) 

125



 CURRITUCK COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION 
 
 
 JOB TITLE: PERMIT OFFICER I 
 PLANNING & COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 
 
 
 GENERAL STATEMENT OF JOB 
 
Under general supervision, performs a variety of specialized clerical and technical work for the 
Planning and Community Development. Work involves receiving building permit applications, 
assigning permit numbers routing applications, accepting applicable fees, scheduling inspections, 
preparing reports and issuing permits. Work also includes receiving CAMA permits as well as 
serving as department receptionist. Reports to the Planning and Community Development Director. 
 
 
 SPECIFIC DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES 
 
ESSENTIAL JOB FUNCTIONS 
 
Provides information and assistance to the public for obtaining building and CAMA permits, 
including greeting customers to determine what type of permit or license is needed, compiling 
necessary information to complete permit or occupational license applications, checking to ensure 
that contractor’s licenses are current and proper, and application packet is complete, calculating 
area of proposed structure to determine proper fee, entering data, typing, issuing permits, and 
collecting applicable fees serves as department receptionist. 
 
Issues building permits upon approval of applications; types all associated correspondence, 
violation and condemnation orders and receipts. 
 
Processes cancelled or revoked permits; issues letters; responds to refund requests. 
 
Compiles forms, permits, notices, licenses, affidavits or form letters with designated or routine 
information; records data from approved building permit applications for the issuance of permits, 
receipts and control numbers. 
 
Coordinates building permit review and inspection process with various county and state 
departments as well as other agencies and utility companies. 
 
Processes ATV permit applications. 
  
Files applications and maintains log of permits and licenses issued; enters such information, 
including scanning,into computer and retrieves filed materials based on full knowledge of 
departmental activities. 
 
Summarizes information and selects data from varied sources to prepare and distribute various 
reports, such as monthly receipts, monthly count of permits issued, reports for U.S. Commerce 
Department, etc. 
 

126



 PERMIT OFFICER 
 

Answers telephone and greets visitors; gathers and provides information based on knowledge of 
programs and procedures. 
 
Receives payments for various fees; prepares daily deposits and cash reports; maintains accounts 
receivable records for department; prepares invoices and billing statements. 
 
Schedules daily inspections and verifies receipt of required forms and approvals, and maintains 
daily inspection schedule on website. 
 
Identifies FEMA flood zones and required elevations. 
 
Researches permitting, zoning, flood plain, plat/maps, tax and other property records 
 
Operates various office equipment including computers, fax, scanner, etc.; maintains files; orders 
and maintains office supply inventory. 
 
ADDITIONAL JOB FUNCTIONS 
 
Performs duties as assigned by the County Manager or his designees during a State of Emergency 
or other disaster. 
 
Performs other related work as required. 
 
 
  

MINIMUM TRAINING AND EXPERIENCE 
 
High school diploma or equivalent supplemented by college-level course work in typing and 
business practices, and one to two years of experience in secretarial or clerical work, preferably 
in construction or building trades operations; or any equivalent combination of training and 
experience which provides the required knowledge, skills and abilities.  
 
 
 

MINIMUM QUALIFICATIONS OR STANDARDS REQUIRED 
 TO PERFORM ESSENTIAL JOB FUNCTIONS 
 
Physical Requirements: Must be physically able to operate a variety of machinery and 
equipment, including typewriters, computers, fax machines, etc. Must be able to exert up to 20 
pounds of force occasionally, and/or up to 10 pounds of force frequently, and/or a negligible 
amount of force constantly to move objects. Light Work usually requires walking or standing to a 
significant degree.  However, if the use of arm and/or leg controls requires exertion of forces 
greater than that for Sedentary Work and the worker sits most of the time, the job is rated for 
Light Work.  
 

 

2 

127



 PERMIT OFFICER 
 

Data Conception: Requires the ability to compare and/or judge the readily observable, 
functional, structural or composite characteristics (whether similar or divergent from obvious 
standards) of data, people or things. 
 
Interpersonal Communication: Requires the ability to speak and/or signal people to convey or 
exchange information. Includes receiving instructions, assignments or directions from superiors.  
 
Language Ability: Requires the ability to read a variety of permits, surveys, charts, graphs, etc. 
Requires the ability to prepare inspection sheets, reports, refunds, etc., using prescribed formats 
and conforming to all rules of punctuation, grammar, diction, and style. Requires the ability to 
speak to people with poise, voice control and confidence.  
 
Intelligence: Requires the ability to apply principles of logical or scientific thinking to define 
problems, collect data, establish facts, and draw valid conclusions; to interpret an extensive variety 
of technical instructions in mathematical or diagrammatic form; and to deal with several abstract 
and concrete variables.  
 
Verbal Aptitude: Requires the ability to record and deliver information, to explain procedures, to 
follow oral and written instructions. Must be able to communicate effectively and efficiently in a 
variety of technical or professional languages including, construction and building terminology. 
 
Numerical Aptitude: Requires the ability to utilize mathematical formulas; to add and subtract; 
multiply and divide; calculate decimals and percentages. 
 
 
Form/Spatial Aptitude: Requires the ability to inspect items for proper length, width and shape. 
 
Motor Coordination: Requires the ability to coordinate hands and eyes rapidly and accurately in 
using office equipment. 
 
Manual Dexterity: Requires the ability to handle a variety of items, such as keyboards, control 
knobs, toggle switches, etc. Must have minimal levels of eye/hand/foot coordination. 
 
Color Discrimination: Requires the ability to differentiate between colors and shades of color. 
 
Interpersonal Temperament: Requires the ability to deal with people beyond giving and receiving 
instructions. Must be adaptable to performing under stress and when confronted with persons 
acting under stress. 
 
Physical Communication: Requires the ability to talk and hear: (Talking: expressing or 
exchanging ideas by means of spoken words. Hearing: perceiving nature of sounds by ear.)  Must 
be able to communicate via telephone. 
 
 
 
 KNOWLEDGE, SKILLS AND ABILITIES 
 

 

3 

128



 PERMIT OFFICER 
 

Considerable knowledge of modern office practices, procedures and equipment and standard 
clerical techniques.  
 
General knowledge of arithmetic, spelling, grammar, punctuation and vocabulary.  
 
General knowledge of office policies governing permit fees, contractor licensing and 
administrative procedures of the department.  
 
Ability to operate a variety of common office machines, including popular computer-driven word 
processing, spreadsheet and file maintenance programs.  
 
Ability to use a calculator and equipment to calculate square footage and measure distances.  
 
Ability to read and interpret surveys and building plans. 
 
Ability to type with accuracy at the speed required for the position.  
 
Ability to make minor decisions in accordance with laws, ordinances, regulations and departmental 
policies and procedures.  
 
Ability to maintain a variety of moderately complex records and to compile data from such 
records.  
 
Ability to exercise independent judgment and initiative to ensure that work is completed on a 
timely basis.  
 
Ability to understand and follow moderately complex oral and written instructions.  
 
Ability to communicate effectively orally and in writing.  
 
Ability to exercise tact and courtesy in frequent contact with the public.  
 
Ability to establish and maintain effective working relationships as necessitated by work 
assignments. 
 
Ability to use independent judgment in making decisions.  
 
 
ED: 07/07/2014 BOC REV 
BOC approved 7-1-08 

 

4 

129



 CURRITUCK COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION 
 
 
 JOB TITLE: PERMIT OFFICER II 
 PLANNING AND COMMUNITY DEVLEOPMENT  DEPARTMENT 
 
 
 GENERAL STATEMENT OF JOB 
 
Under general supervision, performs a variety of specialized clerical and technical work for the 
Planning and Community Development. Work involves receiving building permit applications, 
routing applications, minor review of applications, accepting applicable fees, scheduling 
inspections, preparing reports and assigning permit numbers and issuing permits. Work also 
includes receiving CAMA permits as well as serving as department receptionist. Reports to the 
Plannding and Community Development Director. 
 
 
 SPECIFIC DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES 
 
ESSENTIAL JOB FUNCTIONS 
 
Provides information and assistance to the public for obtaining building and CAMA permits, 
including greeting customers to determine what type of permit or license is needed, compiling 
necessary information to complete permit or occupational license applications, checking to ensure 
that contractor’s licenses are current and proper, and application packet is complete, calculating 
area of proposed structure to determine proper fee, entering data, typing, issuing permits, and 
collecting applicable fees. 
 
Reviews minor building permit applications and site plans to ensure compliance with county 
ordinances.   
 
Coordinates building permit review and inspection process with various county and state 
departments as well as other agencies and utility companies.  
 
Issues building permits upon approval of applications; types all associated correspondence, 
violation and condemnation orders and receipts. 
 
Identifies FEMA flood zones and reviews flood related documents for completeness, including 
elevation certificates. 
 
Processes cancelled or revoked permits; issues letters; responds to refund requests. 
 
Compiles forms, permits, notices, licenses, affidavits or form letters with designated or routine 
information; records data from approved building permit applications for the issuance of permits, 
receipts and control numbers. 
 
Files applications and maintains log of permits and licenses issued; enters such information, 
including scanning, into computer and retrieves filed materials based on full knowledge of 
departmental activities. 
 

130



 PERMIT OFFICER II 
 

Analyzes information and data from varied sources and prepare additional charts and graphs as 
requested. 
 
. 
 
Receives payments for various fees; prepares daily deposits and cash reports; maintains accounts 
receivable records for department; prepares invoices and billing statements. 
 
Schedules daily inspections and verifies receipt of required  forms and approvals, and maintains 
daily inspection schedule on website. 
 
Informs and updates staff on legislative updates regarding permitting. 
 
Researches permitting, zoning, flood plain, plat/maps, tax and other property records.  
 
Processes updates for permitting software and serves as department liaison with software 
company. 
 
Operates various office equipment including computers, fax, scanner,  etc; maintains files; 
maintains office supply inventory. 
 
 
 
ADDITIONAL JOB FUNCTIONS 
 
Performs duties as assigned by the County Manager or his designees during a State of Emergency 
or other disaster. 
 
Performs other related work as required. 
 
 
  

MINIMUM TRAINING AND EXPERIENCE 
 
High school diploma or equivalent supplemented by college-level course work in typing and 
business practices, and three to five  years of experience in secretarial or clerical work, 
preferably in construction or building trades operations; or any equivalent combination of training 
and experience which provides the required knowledge, skills and abilities.  
 
 
 

MINIMUM QUALIFICATIONS OR STANDARDS REQUIRED 
 TO PERFORM ESSENTIAL JOB FUNCTIONS 
 
Physical Requirements: Must be physically able to operate a variety of machinery and 
equipment, including typewriters, computers, fax machines, etc. Must be able to exert up to 20 
pounds of force occasionally, and/or up to 10 pounds of force frequently, and/or a negligible 
amount of force constantly to move objects. Light Work usually requires walking or standing to a 
 

131



 PERMIT OFFICER II 
 

significant degree.  However, if the use of arm and/or leg controls requires exertion of forces 
greater than that for Sedentary Work and the worker sits most of the time, the job is rated for 
Light Work.  
 
Data Conception: Requires the ability to compare and/or judge the readily observable, 
functional, structural or composite characteristics (whether similar or divergent from obvious 
standards) of data, people or things. 
 
Interpersonal Communication: Requires the ability to speak and/or signal people to convey or 
exchange information. Includes receiving instructions, assignments or directions from superiors.  
 
Language Ability: Requires the ability to read a variety of permits, surveys, charts, graphs, etc. 
Requires the ability to prepare inspection sheets, reports, refunds, etc., using prescribed formats 
and conforming to all rules of punctuation, grammar, diction, and style. Requires the ability to 
speak to people with poise, voice control and confidence.  
 
Intelligence: Requires the ability to apply principles of logical or scientific thinking to define 
problems, collect data, establish facts, and draw valid conclusions; to interpret an extensive variety 
of technical instructions in mathematical or diagrammatic form; and to deal with several abstract 
and concrete variables.  
 
Verbal Aptitude: Requires the ability to record and deliver information, to explain procedures, to 
follow oral and written instructions. Must be able to communicate effectively and efficiently in a 
variety of technical or professional languages including, construction and building terminology. 
 
Numerical Aptitude: Requires the ability to utilize mathematical formulas; to add and subtract; 
multiply and divide; calculate decimals and percentages. 
  
Form/Spatial Aptitude: Requires the ability to inspect items for proper length, width and shape. 
 
Motor Coordination: Requires the ability to coordinate hands and eyes rapidly and accurately in 
using office equipment. 
 
Manual Dexterity: Requires the ability to handle a variety of items, such as keyboards, control 
knobs, toggle switches, etc. Must have minimal levels of eye/hand/foot coordination. 
 
Color Discrimination: Requires the ability to differentiate between colors and shades of color. 
 
Interpersonal Temperament: Requires the ability to deal with people beyond giving and receiving 
instructions. Must be adaptable to performing under stress and when confronted with persons 
acting under stress. 
 
Physical Communication: Requires the ability to talk and hear: (Talking: expressing or 
exchanging ideas by means of spoken words. Hearing: perceiving nature of sounds by ear.)  Must 
be able to communicate via telephone. 
 
 
 
 

132



 PERMIT OFFICER II 
 

 KNOWLEDGE, SKILLS AND ABILITIES 
 
Considerable knowledge of modern office practices, procedures and equipment and standard 
clerical techniques.  
 
General knowledge of arithmetic, spelling, grammar, punctuation and vocabulary.  
 
General knowledge of office policies governing permit fees, contractor licensing and 
administrative procedures of the department.  
 
Ability to operate a variety of common office machines, including popular computer-driven word 
processing, spreadsheet and file maintenance programs.  
 
Ability to use a calculator and equipment to calculate square footage and measure distances.  
 
Ability to type with accuracy at the speed required for the position.  
 
Ability to make minor decisions in accordance with laws, ordinances, regulations and departmental 
policies and procedures.  
 
Ability to maintain a variety of moderately complex records and to compile data from such 
records.  
 
Ability to exercise independent judgment and initiative to ensure that work is completed on a 
timely basis.  
 
Ability to understand and follow moderately complex oral and written instructions.  
 
Ability to communicate effectively orally and in writing.  
 
Ability to exercise tact and courtesy in frequent contact with the public.  
 
Ability to read and interpret surveys and building plans. 
 
Ability to establish and maintain effective working relationships as necessitated by work 
assignments. 
 
Ability to use independent judgment in making decisions.  
 
ED:  07/07/2014 BOC 
 

 

133



 
 
 

 CURRITUCK COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION 
 
 
 JOB TITLE: BUILDING INSPECTOR (I, II, III) 
 PLANNING & COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 
 
 
 GENERAL STATEMENT OF JOB 
 
Under general supervision, performs supervisory and skilled inspection work for the county Planning & 
Community Development CD Department in securing compliance with established codes governing one or 
more of the following areas of the building trades: electrical, fire, building (construction and energy), 
mechanical, and plumbing. Work involves interpreting, applying and enforcing rules and regulations 
relating to the construction of new buildings and the repair of existing buildings; inspecting electrical 
installations for quality of workmanship, materials and safety precautions; and interpreting, applying and 
enforcing rules and regulations for plumbing and mechanical system installations in new and existing 
buildings. Employee is also responsible for enforcing the fire code, inspecting buildings and facilities for 
electrical and fire hazards, and reviewing plans and specifications for new construction. Work also involves 
preparing and maintaining inspection reports and records, assisting the general public with inquiries 
pertaining to building codes and permit procedures, reviewing plans, issuing permits, assisting with zoning 
and CAMA regulations and serves as a member of the Storm damage assessment team. Reports to the 
Chief Building Inspector. 
 
 
 SPECIFIC DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES 
 
ESSENTIAL JOB FUNCTIONS 
 
Inspects buildings in the process of construction, alteration or repair for compliance with building code 
requirements, approved plans, and construction and safety practices; examines plot plans, structural 
framing, insulation installation, and general arrangement of building facilities for quality of design, 
materials and workmanship. 
 
Inspects electrical installations and facilities for compliance with code requirements; checks plans and 
specifications for the proper installation and connections of fixtures; investigates complaints concerning 
buildings that may not comply with electrical codes. 
 
Inspects heating, ventilation and air conditioning systems of building structures; reviews newly issued 
building permits along with plans and specifications for proper heating, ventilation and air conditioning 
systems; assists and advises contractors and others regarding pertinent regulations. 
 
Inspects plumbing systems of building structures; reviews newly issued building permits along with plans and 
specifications for proper plumbing systems; assists and advises contractors and others regarding pertinent 
regulations. 
 

 
  1 

134



 BUILDING INSPECTOR (I, II, III) 
 

Inspects new and existing residences, businesses, schools and other buildings for conformance with safety 
standards, zoning codes and ordinances; inspects mobile homes and mobile home parks for adherence to 
applicable zoning codes and ordinances; issues inspection certificates for approved installation; informs 
public concerning code regulations. 
 
Enforces state and local building codes, issuing stop-work orders and pursuing other legal remedies, as 
necessary, to stop violations; testifies in court, as necessary. 
 
Prepares and maintains reports and records pertaining to inspections and code enforcement work. 
 
Reviews and studies building code regulations to maintain knowledge of changes in building codes and 
ordinances; completes necessary classes to maintain required inspection certification. 
 
ADDITIONAL JOB FUNCTIONS 
 
Assists in enforcing CAMA regulations. 
 
Performs duties as assigned by the County Manager or his designees during a State of Emergency or other 
disaster. 
 
Issues building permits. 
 
Member of storm damage assessment team. 
 
Performs other related work as required. 
 
 
 MINIMUM TRAINING AND EXPERIENCE 
 
Graduation from high school, supplemented by special training in building inspection, and some experience 
in residential and/or commercial electrical building, mechanical or plumbing construction work; or any 
equivalent combination of training and experience which provides the required knowledge, skills and 
abilities. 
 
 
 SPECIAL REQUIREMENTS 
 
Possession of a certificate from the North Carolina Code Officials Qualification Board at a level specified 
by the County and State for area(s) of inspection.  Possession of valid North Carolina driver’s license. 
 
 
 AREAS OF CERTIFICATION 
 
Electrical, building (includes energy insulation), mechanical and plumbing. 
 
 
 

 
  2 

135



 BUILDING INSPECTOR (I, II, III) 
 

 CLASS LEVELS 
 
(Limited certification applies only to employees currently in position. New employees must hold stated 
certification.) 
 
Building Codes Inspector I - Probationary, Limited or Standard Level I in building, plumbing, electrical and 
mechanical. 
 
Building Codes Inspector II - Standard level 2 certification in at least 2 areas with a probationary level 2 
in the remaining areas. 
 
Building Codes Inspector III - Standard level 3 certification in at least 2 areas with a probationary level 3 
in the remaining areas. 
 
 MINIMUM QUALIFICATIONS OR STANDARDS REQUIRED 
 TO PERFORM ESSENTIAL JOB FUNCTIONS 
 
Physical Requirements: Must be physically able to operate a variety of machinery and equipment, 
including typewriters, copiers, calculators, levels, measuring tapes, electrical diagnostic equipment, etc. 
Must be physically able to operate a motor vehicle. Must be able to exert up to 50 pounds of force 
occasionally, and/or up to 25 pounds of force frequently, and/or a negligible amount of force constantly 
to move objects. Requires the ability to maintain body equilibrium when bending, stooping, crouching, 
climbing, reaching and/or stretching arms, legs or other parts of body, and to physically maneuver over 
and/or upon varying terrain, surfaces or physical structures. Physical demand requirements are of those for 
Medium Work.  
 
Data Conception: Requires the ability to compare and/or judge the readily observable, functional, 
structural or composite characteristics (whether similar or divergent from obvious standards) of data, 
people or things. 
 
Interpersonal Communication: Requires the ability to speak and/or signal people to convey or exchange 
information. Includes receiving instructions, assignments or directions from superiors.  
 
Language Ability: Requires the ability to read a variety of reports, correspondence, permits, diagrams, 
etc. Requires the ability to prepare a variety of correspondence, reports, forms, etc., using prescribed 
formats. Requires the ability to speak to people with poise, voice control, and confidence. 
 
Intelligence: Requires the ability to apply principles of logical or scientific thinking to define problems, 
collect data, establish facts, and draw valid conclusions; to interpret an extensive variety of technical 
instructions in mathematical or diagrammatic form; and to deal with several abstract and concrete 
variables. 
 
Verbal Aptitude: Requires the ability to record and deliver information, to explain procedures, to follow 
oral and written instructions. Must be able to communicate effectively and efficiently in a variety of 
technical or professional languages, including architectural, construction, electrical, plumbing, engineering, 
and mechanical terminology. 
 

 
  3 

136



 BUILDING INSPECTOR (I, II, III) 
 

Numerical Aptitude: Requires the ability to utilize mathematical formulas; to add and subtract; multiply 
and divide; calculate decimals and percentages; perform calculations involving variables, formulas, square 
roots and polynomials. 
 
Form/Spatial Aptitude: Requires the ability to inspect items for proper length, width and shape. 
 
Motor Coordination: Requires the ability to coordinate hands and eyes rapidly and accurately in using 
office equipment and hand tools. 
 
Manual Dexterity: Requires the ability to handle a variety of items, such as keyboards, control knobs, 
switches, hand tools, etc. Must have minimal levels of eye/hand/foot coordination. 
 
Color Discrimination: Requires the ability to differentiate between colors and shades of color. 
 
Interpersonal Temperament: Requires the ability to deal with people beyond giving and receiving 
instructions. Must be adaptable to performing under stress and when confronted with persons acting under 
stress. 
 
Physical Communication: Requires the ability to talk and hear: (Talking: expressing or exchanging ideas 
by means of spoken words. Hearing: perceiving nature of sounds by ear.)  Must be able to communicate 
via telephone. 
 
 

KNOWLEDGE, SKILLS AND ABILITIES 
 
Considerable knowledge of modern building, plumbing, electrical and mechanical construction practices, 
materials and equipment of the various stages of construction when violations and defects should be 
observed and corrected. 
 
Considerable knowledge of state and local ordinances and codes administered through the Planning and  
Community Development Department applicable to the inspector's area of certification. 
 
Considerable knowledge of the approved methods and practices involved in the installation, construction, 
repair and maintenance of a variety of electrical and mechanical equipment. 
 
Considerable knowledge of the geographical layout of the County. 
 
Ability to use common office equipment. 
 
Ability to use common measurement and electrical system diagnostic equipment, and hand tools. 
 
Ability to detect and locate defective workmanship in construction or repair of buildings. 
 
Ability to interpret blueprints, diagrams, specifications, codes and building regulations. 
 
Ability to assign, direct and supervise activities of a clerical-accounting subordinate. 
 

 
  4 

137



 BUILDING INSPECTOR (I, II, III) 
 

Ability to exercise tact, courtesy and firmness with property owners, architects, engineers, developers, 
contractors and the general public. 
 
Ability to physically maneuver on scaffolds, structural members and in cramped quarters to accomplish 
thorough inspections. 
 
Ability to establish and maintain effective working relationships as necessitated by work assignments. 
assignments. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ED: 07/07/2014 BOC REV  

 
  5 

138



 
 

CURRITUCK COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION 
 
 

JOB TITLE: CHIEF BUILDING INSPECTOR  
PLANNING & COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 

 
 

GENERAL STATEMENT OF JOB 
 
Under limited supervision, performs supervisory and skilled inspection work for the county  Planning & 
Community Development  Department in securing compliance with established codes governing one or 
more of the following areas of the building trades: electrical, fire, building (construction and energy), 
mechanical, and plumbing.  Oversees the issuance of permits and all building inspection work.  Work 
involves interpreting, applying and enforcing rules and regulations relating to the construction of new 
buildings and the repair of existing buildings.  Supervises building inspectors and code enforcement 
officers subordinates, advising and instructing them in the performance of their duties. Reviews and studies 
building code regulations to stay abreast of all changes and are required to exercise independent 
judgment in applying standards to a variety of work situations. Reports to the Planning & CD Director. 
 
 

SPECIFIC DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES 
 
ESSENTIAL JOB FUNCTIONS 
 
Supervises, trains and advises Building Codes Inspectors in performance of inspections, conferring with 
contractors and property owners, issuing building permits and maintaining associated records and reports; 
advises and assists inspectors in performance of inspections, and visits inspection sites to review completed 
inspections. 
 
Performs supervisory tasks in managing the activities of assigned staff; instructs, assigns, and reviews work; 
maintains standards through the effective coordination of activities; allocates personnel; resolves personnel 
problems; provides input involving disciplinary action, promotion, and related personnel issues. 
 
Receives and addresses complaints, questions, and concerns pertaining to inspections from general public, 
developers, contractors, etc., interviewing parties involved and investigating circumstances, and determining 
propriety of previous inspection and required resolution, as appropriate; confers with or corresponds with 
involved parties to advise of determinations and decisions, as appropriate.   
 
Attends and participates in meetings, or prepares correspondence, with inspectors, builders and contractors 
to advise them of code changes and violations at construction sites; confers with County administrators, Fire 
Marshal, contractors, and general public in developing and maintaining enforcement codes. 
 
Directs the inspection of all establishments making sure they are abiding by State Codes in terms of 
electrical, plumbing, mechanical, building asbestos, and fire codes; issues stop-work orders; conducts 
inspections to determine a structure condemned; holds condemnation hearings. 
 
Participates in the inspection process, performing tasks of the inspectors; conducts other inspections including 
school inspections and ABC inspections. 
Assists with the zoning and CAMA regulations. 

139



 
 

 
Testifies in court as necessary. 
 
 
 
ADDITIONAL JOB FUNCTIONS 
 
Performs duties as assigned by the County Manager or his designees during a State of Emergency or other 
disaster. 
 
Performs other related work as required. 
 
 
 

MINIMUM TRAINING AND EXPERIENCE 
 
Bachelor's Degree in architecture, civil engineering or a related field, and five to seven years of 
experience in residential and/or commercial building, mechanical, electrical or plumbing construction or 
inspections work, preferably including supervisory experience; or any combination of training or 
experience which provides the required skills, knowledge and abilities. 
 
 
 

SPECIAL REQUIREMENTS 
 
(Limited certification applies only to employees currently in position.  New employees must hold stated 
certifications.) 
 
Possession of a Standard Level III certification by the North Carolina Code Officials Qualification Board in 
three of the following trades and a minimum Standard Level II in the other trade: electrical, building 
(includes energy insulation), mechanical and plumbing inspections.  Possession of a valid North Carolina 
driver's license.  
 
 
 

MINIMUM QUALIFICATIONS OR STANDARDS REQUIRED 
TO PERFORM ESSENTIAL JOB FUNCTIONS 

 
Physical Requirements: Must be physically able to operate a variety of machinery and equipment 
including adding machines, typewriters, copiers, two-way radios etc. Must be physically able to operate a 
motor vehicle. Must be able to exert up to 50 pounds of force occasionally, and/or up to 10 pounds of 
force frequently, and/or a negligible amount of force constantly to move objects.  Physical demand 
requirements are of those for Medium Work.  
 
Data Conception: Requires the ability to compare and/or judge the readily observable, functional, 
structural or compositional characteristics (whether similar or divergent from obvious standards) of data, 
people or things. 
 

140



Interpersonal Communication: Requires the ability of speaking and/or signaling people to convey or 
exchange information. Includes giving instructions, assignments or directions to subordinates or assistants.  

Language Ability: Requires the ability to read a variety of reports, correspondence, permits, applications, 
blueprints, schematics, diagrams, etc. Requires the ability to prepare correspondence, reports, forms, 
permits, architectural reports, code explanations, etc., using prescribed formats and conforming to all rules 
of punctuation, grammar, diction, and style. Requires the ability to speak to groups of people with poise, 
voice control, and confidence. 

Intelligence: Requires the ability to apply principles of logical or scientific thinking to define problems, 
collect data, establish facts, and draw valid conclusions; to interpret an extensive variety of technical 
instructions in mathematical or diagrammatic form; and to deal with several abstract and concrete 
variables. 

Verbal Aptitude: Requires the ability to record and deliver information, to explain procedures, to follow 
oral and written instructions. Must be able to communicate effectively and efficiently in a variety of 
technical or professional languages including engineering, legal, architectural and construction terminology. 

Numerical Aptitude: Requires the ability to utilize mathematical formulas; to add and subtract; multiply 
and divide; utilize decimals and percentages; understand and apply the theories of algebra. 

Form/Spatial Aptitude: Requires the ability to inspect items for proper length, width and shape. 

Motor Coordination: Requires the ability to coordinate hands and eyes rapidly and accurately in using 
office equipment and hand tools. 

Manual Dexterity: Requires the ability to handle a variety of items such as office equipment and hand 
tools. Must have minimal levels of eye/hand/foot coordination. 

Color Discrimination: Requires the ability to differentiate between colors and shades of color. 

Interpersonal Temperament: Requires the ability to deal with people beyond giving and receiving 
instructions. Must be adaptable to performing under stress and when confronted with persons acting under 
stress. 

Physical Communication: Requires the ability to talk and hear: (Talking: expressing or exchanging ideas 
by means of spoken words. Hearing: perceiving nature of sounds by ear.)  Must be able to communicate 
via a telephone and two-way radio. 

KNOWLEDGE, SKILLS AND ABILITIES 

Thorough knowledge of modern building, plumbing, electrical and mechanical construction, practices, 
materials and equipment. 

Thorough knowledge of state and local ordinances and codes. 

141



Thorough knowledge of ethical guidelines outlined by professional standards and/or federal, state, and 
local laws, rules and regulations. 

Considerable knowledge of County geography. 

General knowledge of principles in supervision, organization and administration. 

Ability to use common office machines including computer-driven word processing, spreadsheets, and file 
maintenance programs. 

Ability to detect and locate defective workmanship in construction or repair of buildings. 

Ability to interpret blueprints, diagrams, specifications, codes and building regulations. 

Ability to deal tactfully and firmly with developers, contractors, property owners and the general public. 

Ability to establish and maintain effective working relationships as necessitated. 

ED:  07/07/2014 REV BOC 

142



143



14444



145



146



147



148


	Table of Contents
	Agenda
	Consideration and Action:
	Case Analysis
	Concept Plan
	Application
	Community Meeting Summary
	Stormwater Narrative
	Stormwater Plan
	Proposed Elevations

	Memorandum and Agreement to Partner with Wildlife Resources Commission for Waterlily Boating Access Area.
	Appointments to Whalehead Preservation Trust
	Approval of June 16, 2014 Minutes
	CDBG Monthly Status Report
	Report

	Centennial Proclamation for NC Cooperative Extension
	Consideration and Action:  Crawford Township Volunteer Fire Department Request to Replace Failed Ladder Truck
	Ladder Test
	Crawford VFD Request

	Petition to NCDOT for State Maintenance of Arabian Lane.
	Report of Insolvents and Resolution Approving the Settlement with the Tax Collector
	Insolvents List

	Award of Contract for Parks and Rec Storage Building
	Award of Disaster Debris Management and Recovery Contract to Crowder Gulf
	Approval of Revised Job Description-Deputy Director of Elections
	Approval of Revised Job Descriptions-Planning and Inspections-Permit Officer I
	Permit Officer II
	Building Inspector I,II, & III
	Chief Building Inspector

	boc-agenda-14jul07.pdf
	Historic Currituck County Courthouse
	7:00 pm Call to Order
	Administrative Reports
	New Business
	C) Consent Agenda:
	D) Commissioner’s Report

	Amending Section 10-63 of Chapter 10 of the Currituck County Code of Ordinances 
	First Amendment to Contract for Fire Protection and Rescue Services-Lower Currituck Volunteer Fire Department and Corolla Fire & Rescue
	Contract for Fire Protection - Corolla Fire & Rescue
	Contract for Fire Protection - Lower Currituck VFD




